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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning,

          3  everyone. And welcome to today's hearing of the

          4  Committee on Transportation. My name is John Liu, I

          5  have the honor of chairing this Committee. I want to

          6  apologize for the slight delay this morning, and I

          7  thank you for your patience.

          8                 Today we have several items on the

          9  agenda. The first two items, Intro. No. 6, and

         10  Intro. No. 37, have previously been considered by

         11  this Committee and were passed. Both bills were then

         12  passed by the full City Council, and sent to Mayor

         13  Bloomberg. Disappointedly, he has vetoed both bills.

         14                 Intro. 6 would officially recognize

         15  the Asian Lunar New Year as a City holiday by

         16  suspending alternate side street parking regulations

         17  on that day, while Intro. 37 would do the same on

         18  the holidays of Purim and Ash Wednesday. A favorable

         19  vote by the Committee on each of these two bills

         20  today would place the full City Council in a

         21  position to override the Mayor's veto and

         22  effectively make both bills law.

         23                 It is important to recall the

         24  compelling reasons why the Committee saw fit to

         25  unanimously pass these two bills back in September
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          2  of this year. The suspension of alternate side of

          3  street parking rules on these three holidays would

          4  symbolize the importance of the Asian, Jewish and

          5  Christian communities in New York City.

          6                 These communities represent

          7  significant portions of New York's population, and

          8  the bills would simply serve to honor each community

          9  by making it more convenient to celebrate these

         10  holidays.

         11                 The Administration essentially gave

         12  two reasons for opposing these two bills. The first

         13  was that the bill would reduce the total number of

         14  days upon which the Department of Sanitation cleans

         15  the streets, resulting in substantially dirty

         16  streets.

         17                 I contend that any degradation in the

         18  cleanliness of City streets would really be

         19  nonexistent or negligible. We are only talking about

         20  three days out of a total of 365 days, and

         21  additionally, depending on how the calendar falls

         22  each year, some of these holidays are likely to fall

         23  on days when the City does not do street cleaning.

         24                 The Administration's second issue

         25  with these bills revolves around the fact that the
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          2  City would lose revenue by suspending parking

          3  regulations on these holidays, and therefore not be

          4  able to issue parking tickets.

          5                 I submit to you that the

          6  Administration's figure, in terms of total revenue

          7  loss, are inflated.

          8                 More importantly, though, I believe

          9  that the loss of nominal revenue has no place in

         10  determining whether or not the Asian, Jewish and

         11  Christian communities deserve to be respected by

         12  allowing each to celebrate their respective holidays

         13  in a manner that is both more enjoyable and more

         14  convenient and doable for them.

         15                 New York City should be seeking to

         16  embrace its diverse communities, not alienate any of

         17  them by exhibiting a lack of respect.

         18                 I, therefore, urge my colleagues on

         19  this Committee to vote to reapprove Intro. No. 6 and

         20  Intro. No. 37 today.

         21                 The final bill on today's agenda, for

         22  which we will spend the vast amount of time during

         23  this Committee hearing, is Intro. No. 267, which is

         24  being considered by this Committee for the first

         25  time.
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          2                 This bill would provide on demand

          3  ground transportation in areas underserved by

          4  taxicabs. Specifically, this bill authorizes the

          5  creation of for-hire vehicle stands in strategic

          6  locations throughout New York City, where such

          7  vehicles would be allowed for the very first time to

          8  pick up passengers without a pre-arrangement.

          9                 This bill addresses a vital need for

         10  commuters in areas outside core Manhattan, to obtain

         11  ground transportation in qualifying locations where

         12  taxicab service and other ground transportation

         13  options simply do not exist, or are very poor.

         14                 The bill specifies that there must be

         15  demand for such service, and that any stand created

         16  be situated in a location near a heavily used mass

         17  transit facility exist point, which would include

         18  major subway stations.

         19                 The bill aims to help commuters reach

         20  their destination, be it home, work, business

         21  meetings or other important destinations in a more

         22  convenient manner.

         23                 The bill would provide such commuters

         24  with a new legal government-regulated transportation

         25  option. The bill will first dispose of Intro 6 and
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          2  37, and then we will welcome Commissioner Matt Daus,

          3  Chairman of the City Taxi and Limousine Commission,

          4  followed by the representatives of the DOT and a

          5  number of other industry groups.

          6                 At this time I'd like to announce

          7  that we are joined today by Council Members Helen

          8  Sears from Queens, to my right. Council Member Joe

          9  Addabbo, from Queens. And then to my left we are

         10  joined by Council Member Simcha Felder from

         11  Brooklyn, Council Member Oliver Koppell from the

         12  Bronx, Council Member Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan,

         13  and Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.

         14                 Welcome.

         15                 Council Members, before we take a

         16  vote on these, there will be three votes. The first

         17  vote will be to receive the Mayor's message on both

         18  Intros 6 and 37 and then the second and third votes

         19  will be on each of those intros respectively, and at

         20  this point I would like to ask if the committees

         21  have any questions?

         22                 Okay, well, let me then announce that

         23  the first vote specifically is upon a motion to

         24  receive and file the Mayor's Message, M 326, vetoing

         25  Intro. No. 6, and Mayor's Message M 327, vetoing
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          2  Intro. No. 37. Both dated October 9th, 2002. This is

          3  done for purposes of completing the record. A yes

          4  vote will only mean that the message is accepted

          5  into the official record of Council proceedings, and

          6  does not indicate agreement with its contents.

          7                 Does anyone have any questions

          8  concerning this vote? I do recommend a yes vote on

          9  accepting this Mayor's veto message for the record.

         10  Are there any questions on this particular vote?

         11  Thank you. I would like to request that the clerk

         12  call the roll.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in
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          2  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

          3  abstentions, the Mayor's messages are filed and the

          4  vote will remain open.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I would like to

          6  request that the Clerk hold the vote open.

          7                 The Committee will now vote on the

          8  following substantive motion. Shall Intro. No. 6 be

          9  repassed, notwithstanding the objections of the

         10  Mayor.

         11                 Again, I recommend a yes vote on

         12  repassing this bill, and are there any questions

         13  among the Committee members?

         14                 Will the Clerk please call the roll.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I request

          3  permission to explain my vote, Mr. Chairman?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Absolutely, Council

          5  member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I have

          7  supported this, and came out of Committee with it,

          8  but I have since received many phone calls on it. I

          9  will support this to come out of Committee, but I

         10  must say that I hope there will be a reevaluation,

         11  when it does it will come back to the Committee. So,

         12  I vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         14  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         15  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. I'd like

         17  to ask the Clerk to hold the vote open on this

         18  motion.

         19                 The Committee will now vote on the

         20  following substantive motion: Shall Intro. No. 37 be

         21  repassed, notwithstanding the objections of the

         22  Mayor.

         23                 Again, I recommend that a yes vote be

         24  cast on this bill.

         25                 Are there any questions from my
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          2  Council members? Will the clerk please call the

          3  roll?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The same for

         16  this intro, that upon reevaluation it will come back

         17  to the Committee, and at some point we'll recess it.

         18  I vote yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of six in

         20  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         21  absentions, the item is reapproved.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         23  colleagues. And I'd like to ask the Clerk to keep

         24  the vote open on that last motion as well.

         25                 I want to thank everyone for their
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          2  patience thus far this morning.

          3                 I'd like to invite Commissioner Matt

          4  Daus to provide us with his comments on Intro. No.

          5  67.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, please.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Before you

          9  begin, I beg the indulgence of the Committee, I do

         10  have to go. I explained to you that I have an

         11  important obligation that came up at the last

         12  moment. I'm very sorry I can't hear the testimony on

         13  this, because in fact I was a strong proponent and

         14  am a co-sponsor. But I can assure you I will read

         15  the testimony and discuss it with my colleagues. So,

         16  I, with regret, have to ask to be excused from

         17  listening to the testimony.

         18                 Commissioner, I'm sorry I won't be

         19  able to hear it. But I have already read your

         20  testimony and will look at this with considerable

         21  interest in the future.

         22                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And I'll

         24  note that Council Member Koppell was one of the

         25  proponents of this concept that we are for the first
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          2  time discussing publicly today.

          3                 Mr. Chairman.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Good morning,

          5  Council Member Liu, Council members, thank you for

          6  inviting me here to testify today. My name is

          7  Matthew Daus, the Commissioner and Chair of the Taxi

          8  and Limousine Commission.

          9                 To my right, we have our colleague

         10  from the Department of Transportation, David Woloch,

         11  Deputy Commissioner for External Affairs, and just

         12  briefly, if I could just introduce the staff that I

         13  have with me today?

         14                 To my left I have, my immediate left,

         15  Peter Mazur, the TLC's General Counsel; to his left

         16  is Barbara Schechter, Deputy Commissioner for Policy

         17  and Programs; and behind me I have Bill Carter and

         18  Jeanne Ohn and some other staff in the room, in case

         19  you have any questions.

         20                 Mr. Chairman, if it would be okay

         21  with you, after delivering written testimony, what

         22  we'd like to do is turn it over to Deputy

         23  Commissioner Woloch for his testimony and then

         24  answer any questions that you might have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Of course. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Again, I

          4  appreciate the opportunity to testify here today on

          5  behalf of the TLC with regard to Intro. No. 267.

          6                 The TLC was created pursuant to the

          7  City Charter and has been given the responsibility

          8  of developing an overall transportation strategy for

          9  demand responsive transportation providers,

         10  established by local law and TLC regulations over

         11  the years.

         12                 The TLC licenses and regulates

         13  medallion taxicabs, community livery vehicles, black

         14  cars, commuter vans, paratransit vehicles, and

         15  luxury limousines. Radio dispatch services provide

         16  the greater public benefit. I'm sorry. I think I

         17  have the wrong page.

         18                 Each of these industries has its own

         19  place in the comprehensive transportation network of

         20  the City, providing transportation services in

         21  response to a particular need of New York City

         22  residents and visitors, to supplement and compliment

         23  public transportation.

         24                 For example, taxicabs provide hail

         25  service in high density areas, while other For Hire
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          2  Vehicles, FHVs, as we call them, are available

          3  solely for radio dispatch calls and provide

          4  door-to-door service.

          5                 For the most part, when looked at

          6  from the broader perspective, this has been a

          7  largely successful balancing act that sees the

          8  public served quite well.

          9                 The many neighborhoods of New York

         10  City are unique, with different transportation

         11  needs. In some areas a hail-type system provides the

         12  best service.

         13                 In other areas, radio dispatch

         14  services provide the greater public benefit. It is

         15  true that medallion taxicabs primarily served the

         16  central business district of Manhattan, though there

         17  are operational medallion taxicab stands in parts of

         18  the Bronx, Queens and Brooklyn.

         19                 While the TLC has basis and law to

         20  require and enforce that passengers be transported

         21  anywhere in the City of New York, as well as certain

         22  destinations beyond the City, there is no such basis

         23  to require that medallion taxicabs cruise areas

         24  other than those they wish to frequent.

         25                 As they are part of a free market,
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          2  taxicabs frequent those areas where there is

          3  sufficient business. It's also an undeniable fact

          4  that there are some communities throughout the City

          5  of New York that prefer hail-like service to public

          6  transportation, and prearranged for-hire vehicle

          7  services available in their localities, this

          8  preference is evident.

          9                 While we recognize the Council's

         10  intention to begin to address this issue, Intro. No.

         11  267, if passed in its current form, would require

         12  significant layers of bureaucracy to implement and

         13  monitor a system of such scope.

         14                 Indeed, it is our mission at the TLC

         15  to reduce existing bureaucracy, not to add

         16  additional layers.

         17                 It is also true that Intro. No. 267

         18  does not address the issue of enforcement, which is

         19  clearly problematic.

         20                 There are aspects, however, of Intro.

         21  No. 267 that we believe would be a positive step

         22  towards improving customer service and industry

         23  accountability. Such as the requirement of trip

         24  sheets and the posting of for-hire driver's licenses

         25  in livery vehicles. And the TLC would be pleased to
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          2  consider these provisions as amendments to the TLC's

          3  existing regulations.

          4                 That said, however, the TLC believes,

          5  and logic dictates, that we take the time and the

          6  opportunity to further study and discuss the

          7  viability of such an approach, as is in this Intro.,

          8  with the Council and with the Department of

          9  Transportation.

         10                 We also look forward to hearing the

         11  testimony of the public and members of the TLC's

         12  regulated industries, which I see are here today, so

         13  that we may carefully consider their considered

         14  positions as important stakeholders in this process.

         15                 Again, thank you for inviting me to

         16  testify, and I'd like to turn the mic over to Deputy

         17  Commissioner Woloch.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Good

         19  morning, Chairman Liu, and the members of the

         20  Transportation Committee. My name is David Woloch,

         21  and I am the Deputy Commissioner for External

         22  Affairs for the New York City Department of

         23  Transportation.

         24                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         25  discuss Intro. 267, which would allow for-hire
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          2  vehicles to accept passengers without

          3  pre-arrangement at select stands established in each

          4  borough.

          5                 As the establishment of such stands

          6  is the only aspect of this proposed bill with a

          7  direct impact on DOT, I will be limiting my comments

          8  to this portion of the bill.

          9                 Section 1 of the bill, which proposes

         10  to grant DOT the authority to establish for-hire

         11  vehicle stands and sets out the criteria for siting

         12  such stands, is unnecessary, given that DOT clearly

         13  has this authority at present pursuant to Section

         14  2903 of the New York City Charter.

         15                 DOT is already in the business of

         16  exercising such authority, in fact, makes

         17  determinations on an every day basis on the

         18  utilization of curb space throughout the City,

         19  including those for establishing taxi and for-hire

         20  vehicle relief stands, for-hire vehicle staging

         21  areas, as well as taxi stands.

         22                 It's important to note that DOT

         23  relies on our colleagues at the TLC for its

         24  expertise and guidance in determining where stands

         25  may be needed, and the extent to which they are
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          2  utilized, as well as on community input.

          3                 In order to determine whether and how

          4  a stand should be placed, DOT undertakes a

          5  feasibility study that includes a series of field

          6  observations to assess such factors as road

          7  diametrics, traffic patterns and land use.

          8                 For example, there must be ample room

          9  for the vehicles to line up. Specifically we require

         10  20 feet per vehicle.

         11                 Locations generally considered not

         12  desirable, include those near sidewalk cafes or

         13  other significant pedestrian activity, extremely

         14  congested areas and those near bus stops and loading

         15  zones.

         16                 Moreover, information concerning

         17  current utilization stands, also as provided by the

         18  TLC, is a deciding factor in those cases where an

         19  issue of whether or not to remove or relocate a

         20  particular stand arises.

         21                 I should also note that safety

         22  concerns, a fundamental component of DOT's

         23  stewardship over much of the City's public space is

         24  always paramount in any exercise of agency

         25  discretion.
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          2                 Certainly any curtailment of such

          3  authority would be troublesome.

          4                 In conclusion, aspects of the

          5  proposed bill are unnecessary given that DOT already

          6  regularly exercises this Charter-derived authority

          7  to regulate the use of curb space in the City of New

          8  York.

          9                 Once again, thanks for the

         10  opportunity to testify before you today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         12  gentlemen.

         13                 A quick question for Deputy

         14  Commissioner Woloch.

         15                 I understand what you mean by certain

         16  aspects of the bill are unnecessary with regard DOT;

         17  is any part of the bill relevant to what DOT can and

         18  cannot do? Or does DOT actually -- do we not need to

         19  address the DOT in this bill?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well,

         21  it's certainly relevant. I think in theory DOT could

         22  go out now and using the same process as we use for

         23  other kinds of stands, we could set up for hire

         24  stands in this manner. Nobody could use them because

         25  based on the taxicab regulations, they can at this
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          2  point.

          3                 So, I think we have the authority to

          4  do what we need to do. I think as always, and as we

          5  do with taxi stands now, we would go to great

          6  lengths to not only solicit input in terms of

          7  gauging the need for a stand from the TLC, but also

          8  from the community and elected officials.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And in your

         10  testimony you mentioned some of the kinds of stands

         11  that currently are being established or have already

         12  been established by the Department of

         13  Transportation.

         14                 There would not need to be a new

         15  category of such stands, created through

         16  legislation, that DOT simply would, based on

         17  regulations that presumably would be promulgated by

         18  the Taxi and Limousine Commission, then use those

         19  regulations to create the signage that's necessary

         20  and the designation of the spots?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: If these

         22  category of taxis had the ability to do curbside

         23  pick-up, that's all we would need to do, that's the

         24  only other change that would be necessary for us in

         25  order to do our part to make that happen. So the
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          2  answer is essentially yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. Yes, that's

          4  very helpful to me because it sounded like in

          5  conclusion, the only thing I heard in the conclusion

          6  was that aspects of the proposed bill are

          7  unnecessary, given that DOT does much, or some of

          8  the stuff that's addressed in the bill. However,

          9  there are significant portions or concepts in the

         10  bill that would certainly involve the DOT, and at

         11  that point I guess, perhaps the DOT doesn't have a

         12  hard opinion on this bill yet, because I think that

         13  certainly the City Council and my colleagues here do

         14  look to work closely with the DOT and the

         15  Administration on fashioning a bill that is

         16  workable. So, would I be able to use that as kind of

         17  part of the conclusion also, rather than just this

         18  one sentence conclusion?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Well, I

         20  think in terms of the rest of the bill, and the

         21  question of whether for-hire vehicles should be

         22  allowed to do this sort of pick-up at specified

         23  locations, I'll defer to my colleague, Commissioner

         24  Daus, to speak on behalf of the Administration on

         25  that issue.
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          2                 DOT's, what DOT can speak to now is

          3  the portion of the bill that gets at how these

          4  stands would be sited. And in effect, a process

          5  already exists, we have the authority that we would

          6  need to do, and we would, were this to happen we

          7  would use similar processes to what we do for other

          8  kinds of stands. You know, there are nuances that

          9  would be different. But I guess the upshot is in

         10  terms of the portion of the bill that directly

         11  references DOT, those sections appeared to us to be

         12  unnecessary, because we have the authority already.

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And if I could

         14  just add to that, Mr. Chairman?

         15                 You know, the DOT, as you know, works

         16  very, very closely with the TLC and with the

         17  Council, you know, even on setting up livery relief

         18  stands there's significant community input that we

         19  obtain, as well as for yellow cab stands throughout

         20  the City. And of course, as we consider the options

         21  that you're presenting and other ideas that we may

         22  discuss, we of course would include not only the

         23  Council but the Administration and the Department of

         24  Transportation, as we do on a daily basis we work

         25  very closely with them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          3                 And I guess, I think we all realize

          4  that we live and work in a very large and complex

          5  City and the Taxi and Limousine Commission has what

          6  I think is a herculean task of coordinating all this

          7  ground transportation and making sure that we have a

          8  strategy in the City that serves the needs of New

          9  Yorkers. And I would agree with much of your

         10  testimony, Commissioner Daus, that we have a system

         11  that has largely worked in terms of a system that

         12  allows certain areas of the City where this

         13  off-the-street hail system has higher demand, and we

         14  had the medallion taxicabs to address those needs,

         15  and in other parts of the City we have people who

         16  would find it more convenient to be able to call a

         17  car service basically and get that kind of ground

         18  transportation option basically delivered to their

         19  homes or wherever they happen to be.

         20                 The reason that I and my colleagues

         21  have introduced this bill is to address a need that

         22  to me is very clear. It's a need that exists in many

         23  parts of the City, and a simple example is when

         24  someone gets out of a major subway station,

         25  particularly at terminal stations, there is often a
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          2  need to be able to jump in a car pretty quickly, for

          3  whatever reasons, whether it be to get home or get

          4  to a business meeting or even to get to work. And so

          5  the question then becomes do those New Yorkers have

          6  the option of getting the off-the-street on-demand

          7  -- I think I'm not that great at the lingo, but

          8  basically you just want to jump in a car and get to

          9  where you want to go.

         10                 Does that option exist outside

         11  Manhattan in the expertise of the TLC and your

         12  staff?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, legally the

         14  option exists. But practically from a business

         15  standpoint, when you thrive on street hails and

         16  that's the way in which you get business, and you

         17  operate off a meter, you're going to go to the areas

         18  that are most densely populated most of the time.

         19  That's why the yellow cabs go to Manhattan, and our

         20  statistics on our operation refusals that we've been

         21  maintaining indicate that, that people don't go when

         22  they drive cabs to other boroughs, not because

         23  there's any reason other than the fact that they

         24  can't make as much money.

         25                 Now, clearly I think there's a need
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          2  at certain transportation hubs for people to get

          3  where they want to go when there is not adequate

          4  mass transit, or people just would rather not

          5  bother. Some people would rather not bother making a

          6  phone call, and getting a base there. And there are

          7  some transportation hubs that have bases that are

          8  located right near areas where you might want to put

          9  a stand, such as you speak of in the intro. And you

         10  know, so you have sometimes store fronts or

         11  community car services that are located right

         12  outside. I know there's one on East 16th Street and

         13  Kings Highway in Brooklyn. I live around the corner

         14  from an old yellow cab stand on 86th Street and

         15  Fourth Avenue in Brooklyn, and I could tell you that

         16  there are yellow cabs there and I see them.

         17                 So, there are some yellow cabs

         18  floating around the borough, not that many, and you

         19  primarily do have a problem of for-hire vehicles

         20  illegally picking up in the streets. That's an

         21  undeniable fact, it's happening.

         22                 But you also have, especially in less

         23  densely populated areas, Chairman, you know, people

         24  who are very, very happy with door-to-door service

         25  and that's a reality. I mean, if you live in an area
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          2  where, you know, it's residential and you want to go

          3  one place to another, it makes sense to call a

          4  community car service space.

          5                 So, in answer to your question, the

          6  need is there. This is something that we've spoken

          7  about at other public hearings. We appreciate the

          8  Council's intentions to put forward the beginnings

          9  of a plan and we look forward to further studying

         10  this issue, after hearing some of the public

         11  testimony that we'll hear today I'm sure from stake

         12  holders and members of the industry.

         13                 You know, but for the record, just to

         14  clarify my testimony and amplify on it a little

         15  more, you know, the two issues that I would urge

         16  consideration for, because any plan that's developed

         17  to address this need, if we can do that is, number

         18  one, not creating layers of bureaucracy.

         19                 When I was confirmed as Chair, and I

         20  believe I can speak for the Mayor on this, we want

         21  to streamline our operations in the government.

         22  There's no question about that. And it's our mission

         23  at the TLC to reduce waiting time at our facilities,

         24  to reduce the processing time for getting licenses,

         25  and to eliminate the paperwork. The balancing act
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          2  is, as David testified, you know, when you're

          3  putting stands in anyone's community, regardless of

          4  whether it's a relief stand or one of these other

          5  types of stands, you have to take into consideration

          6  the needs and the considerations of the community

          7  and the Council, and I'm a strong believer in that,

          8  and we have a very good relationship working

          9  together on a variety of community issues, but we

         10  also don't want to create a situation that currently

         11  exists with the processing of base license

         12  applications where the intention was, let's get as

         13  much community input before the TLC looks at a base

         14  license renewal and afterwards before the Council

         15  votes on it. And the concern that I have is, if any

         16  legislation comes out of the Council that involves

         17  review of the Council, which is of course welcome,

         18  it has to be I think in an expeditious streamlined

         19  way so as not to create layers of bureaucracy with

         20  papers pushing back and forth in gridlock.

         21                 And the second concern is a real

         22  challenge.

         23                 You know, we have a tremendous budget

         24  deficit that we're facing, not only in this fiscal

         25  year but in the outyears, and I know that's going to
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          2  consume a lot of the time of the Mayor, the

          3  Administration and the Council over the next several

          4  years.

          5                 The key to any system to meet the

          6  demand that the Council is looking to explore

          7  meeting, is to have enforcement.

          8                 If you create a stand or if you do

          9  any type of other system that you put into place,

         10  you meet that need, unless there's constant

         11  supervision and enforcement, many things could

         12  happen, including the worst being unlicensed

         13  vehicles with unlicensed drivers who don't have the

         14  proper levels of insurance, who have not gone

         15  through the TLC's rigorous licensing process,

         16  including getting criminal background checks and

         17  drug testing, the ability for creating an area where

         18  passengers know they can go to get service and also

         19  drivers, whether licensed or unlicensed, would go to

         20  meet the needs, the hailed needs of the passengers,

         21  and if there's not constant supervision by law

         22  enforcement, you could have those unlicensed

         23  vehicles and drivers crashing the line, and

         24  basically possibly putting those very same

         25  passengers into jeopardy or endangering them.
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          2                 So, that's our concern. We estimate

          3  that at a bear minimum, that this bill the way it's

          4  written, Council member, could cost as much as $2.5

          5  million in terms of enforcement that we would

          6  require to staff it. So, you know, it's a challenge.

          7  It's a challenge that we're willing to kick around

          8  and review other ideas, as we had discussed

          9  previously, and we look forward with earnest to a

         10  lot of the testimony that we'll hear today, and we

         11  will take that back to the table and analyze it and

         12  think it through and then we'll continue a dialogue.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I know I have

         14  questions from my colleagues on this Committee. I

         15  just wanted to, I certainly appreciate those two

         16  very important points that you have brought up, and

         17  I think they're very valid points, and I just wanted

         18  to give you my gut reactions to those two if I may,

         19  and whether you want to talk about it more today, or

         20  whether we could talk about it in our ongoing

         21  discussions on this very important issue. Either way

         22  would be fine.

         23                 The first consideration of

         24  streamlining our governmental operations, I think

         25  that is something that certainly you and the Mayor
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          2  are very keen on and I believe this City Council

          3  would like to make government simpler and more

          4  effective as well.

          5                 When it comes to setting up

          6  bureaucracies, no one likes to set up bureaucracies.

          7  I certainly, I hate bureaucracy. But on the other

          8  hand, we certainly don't have a pure free-market

          9  system when it comes to for-hire vehicles and other

         10  forms of ground transportation in the City. And, so,

         11  there is already some kind of government regulation,

         12  some people may call it intervention, some people

         13  may call it bureaucracy, and I think that we

         14  basically have two layers right now. Well, not

         15  layers but two categories, and there is a need that

         16  is not being addressed by this current system of two

         17  categories of car services.

         18                 I would never fault cab drivers,

         19  medallion cab drivers where they're owners or

         20  operators for not going to places that aren't

         21  profitable. But I think as a government we do have a

         22  responsibility to address the need that to me

         23  clearly exists in the public, and so while we're not

         24  trying to create additional layers of bureaucracy, I

         25  think that we can, it is incumbent upon us to design
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          2  a structure within which free market will still be

          3  the overriding motivation for drivers and owners.

          4  But at the same time we'll be able to address the

          5  needs that is clearly demanded by the public.

          6                 And then the second issue of, I think

          7  everybody understands we're in an extremely tight

          8  fiscal crunch right now in the City of New York, and

          9  we're not looking to introduce costs, and I'm just,

         10  I'm actually wondering that currently the TLC does

         11  conduct a substantial amount of enforcement out in

         12  the City, and I'm not sure how much that enforcement

         13  actually costs the City of New York in terms of net

         14  costs, whether there might actually be net revenues

         15  generated. You know, my feeling from what I know,

         16  and I certainly don't plan to know as much as any of

         17  you or any of your staff or yourself about this, but

         18  my knowledge is that the cost of enforcement is

         19  actually not that substantial, but I could be wrong.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, Chair, it

         21  sounds to me as if you share the concerns in the

         22  philosophy that I share, and that's why this is a

         23  difficult issue. There's no easy solution to this,

         24  meeting that need, as you could see, because it will

         25  cost money in our view, and we also want to make
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          2  sure, as you do as well, I think we're on the same

          3  page, to make sure that any type of input from the

          4  community doesn't bog us down in not doing anything

          5  at all and having paperwork. And that's happened on

          6  the base licensing side.

          7                 It takes six to seven months to

          8  process those applications, because of all the

          9  paperwork that goes back and forth.

         10                 So, let me just respond to your

         11  question by saying the TLC is not in the business of

         12  enforcing the law to make money or bring in revenue,

         13  and we never look at it that way, what we look at is

         14  making sure that we can use the limited enforcement

         15  that we have, and of course I could sit here and

         16  tell you of course we would like more enforcement,

         17  who wouldn't, but with the fiscal challenges that we

         18  face, it's important to try to make the best of what

         19  you have, and that's why we put into place a model

         20  of enforcement that's similar to the Police

         21  Department's COMPSTAT program where we map out on

         22  computers where we believe illegal unlicensed

         23  vehicles are picking up, and where refusals are

         24  taking place, and we monitor that and we take the

         25  existing staff and redeploy them, maybe spend five
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          2  days in one location, hitting, you know, basically

          3  enforcing the law very strongly and then going to

          4  another location, mixing it up. That's the only way

          5  we could be affected, given the 110 enforcement

          6  officers which we have. Okay, we have, our PS budget

          7  in Fiscal '02, was 5.9 million. If we were to

          8  require a consistent presence, just the bear minimum

          9  of ten stands to make it work in the bill that's

         10  being introduced, it would cost about $2.5 million,

         11  which would be half of what we currently have. And

         12  that's a conservative estimate because of the nature

         13  of the type of enforcement that will be required.

         14                 Obviously, if there's more stands

         15  involved, you could take a limited group and mix it

         16  up, but the nature of the stand is you're creating

         17  an environment where people know where they can get

         18  that type of transportation and people will go to

         19  and expect it, which means that you will have

         20  probably even more illegal unlicensed vehicles going

         21  to those locations and if you don't have it policed,

         22  every morning rush and every evening rush and at

         23  other times that you can frequent it, it causes an

         24  additional enforcement challenge.

         25                 So, these are concerns that we need
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          2  to talk about and address, and, you know, we

          3  appreciate the Council taking the first steps to

          4  look at this issue, but it is complicated. It

          5  requires further study. We need to go back and look

          6  at the fiscal implications, is there another way

          7  that we could ascertain and work together to do

          8  something which we think is reasonable, if that's

          9  capable of being done, and, again, my number one

         10  concern is whatever system that the Council seeks to

         11  consider, that the Council should just be mindful,

         12  as I know you and your members are, of ensuring that

         13  we cut down bureaucracy and don't create more.

         14                 So, I think it sounds to me like we

         15  both share the same philosophy and we'd be happy to

         16  continue to discuss these issues with you.

         17                 Does that answer your question?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         19                 And I know we will be discussing

         20  these issues much further.

         21                 We do have a couple of questions,

         22  first from Council Member Joe Addabbo.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 To the panel, thank you for your time
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          2  and testimony today. My question actually is for

          3  Chairman Daus.

          4                 True, not every location

          5  geographically is suitable or desirable to possibly

          6  have a taxi stand, but in your testimony you said

          7  taxicabs provide hail service in high density areas.

          8  For high density areas is there an industry or

          9  agency definitive definition for that? If not, what

         10  factors would you use for high density areas?

         11                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, I mean

         12  that's referred to more generically, in terms of the

         13  use of those terms.

         14                 We could probably refer to City

         15  Planning and other documents for other definitions,

         16  but what I really meant was just the common use of

         17  those words to mean that yellow cabs are there to

         18  make money.

         19                 They can make a lot of money on short

         20  trips and on airport runs, and it's more worth their

         21  while from what we've seen and studied for yellow

         22  cabs to go from point to point in Manhattan, in the

         23  Central Business District part of Manhattan where

         24  there are many people who do not have their own

         25  vehicles, who are looking to go for short trips one
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          2  after the other. There's less down time in terms of

          3  time between trips.

          4                 When you're talking about the

          5  boroughs outside of Manhattan, there may be a need

          6  for hail type of service during certain rushhours,

          7  or at certain transportation hubs at certain points

          8  of the day, but it may not be worth the while of a

          9  yellow cab driver to stay there all day. And that's

         10  why in some, in Brooklyn, Queens and parts of the

         11  Bronx, you know, you'll see a yellow cab or two

         12  these days and there was a time when they weren't

         13  there at all. On 86th Street and Fourth Avenue, I

         14  see at all times one or two yellow cabs waiting

         15  there. What they will do, because a lot of cab

         16  drivers do live in the boroughs outside of

         17  Manhattan, is they'll try to get a ride or two

         18  before they come into Manhattan. That's been my

         19  personal experience.

         20                 So, what I mean by high density, to

         21  answer your question is, areas where you can

         22  frequently get enough short and long trips

         23  throughout the day, such that it warrants you going

         24  back to that area or that location where you think

         25  the business is, I just don't believe that there is
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          2  enough business to sustain yellow cabs all day long,

          3  so what happens, a livery vehicle might illegally

          4  pick up, you know, a couple of street hails at a

          5  location near a transportation hub, but throughout

          6  the day they'll take radio calls from a licensed car

          7  service base and they mix it up a little bit. That's

          8  been our experience.

          9                 I mean, we'd be happy to, as we

         10  continue looking at this issue, to look at some of

         11  the definitions that are in City Planning documents

         12  about these issues, because there are documents that

         13  you can get a look at to get exact figures as to how

         14  many people live where and so forth and that's

         15  something that we need to look at.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Just as a

         17  slide seguay, and this may be a question for Deputy

         18  Commissioner Woloch, the current taxi stands that we

         19  have, possibly there, what criteria have been used

         20  to establish those taxi stands?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: I guess

         22  the best way to describe it is there are two

         23  overall, I'd say three overall pieces, there's,

         24  whether there's the demand for it, whether there's

         25  the need for it, and then there's the question of

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  how can the stand safely be put somewhere. And then

          3  there's the question of what use would we be taking

          4  away from that curb space. At the end of the day

          5  what we're doing is, at DOT, is we're balancing all

          6  the different uses of curb space. So, metered

          7  parking, sub-loading, unloading. I mean, the

          8  likelihood for places where there is a demand for

          9  either a taxi stand, or if this were to be the case

         10  for an FHV stand, these are very busy areas, you

         11  would likely be taking that space away from meters

         12  or truck loading or loading or some other use, and

         13  there's always that trade off as well. So, really

         14  those three general categories are what plays into

         15  that decision-making.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Great. That's

         17  what I was looking for.

         18                 I look forward to working with you on

         19  this issue. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. A

         23  question from Council Member Sears.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chairman. And thank you, Commissioner, for your
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          2  testimony.

          3                 I have to say publicly that it's a

          4  delight to work with you and I truly mean that,

          5  because you have such a grasp of this City.

          6                 I have a couple of questions that if

          7  we have these bases, we all know what the peak hours

          8  are, whether they're in Manhattan, or the other four

          9  boroughs. We all know what they are. What happens

         10  during the non-peak hours, are we having empty

         11  spaces, are the bases going to mandate that some of

         12  their drivers stay there and idle their time?

         13                 If my district, LaGuardia Airport,

         14  the reason we don't see yellow cabs, and the reason

         15  that this industry has grown so is because we do not

         16  have yellow cabs. And there is a vital need for

         17  that.

         18                 The yellow cabs are at LaGuardia

         19  Airport. They are not moving around within the

         20  communities. The calling up for service is very

         21  highly utilized, and certainly if my district is to

         22  be an example, and I believe I have a global picture

         23  of this, looking at it Citywide, probably my

         24  district can become the closest to any busy area in

         25  Manhattan. In fact, it's becoming the second
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          2  Manhattan, and you know that. People that, if we

          3  have to have these bases, and they're there for time

          4  and we're going to lose a lot of space, they're not

          5  going to be in the residential areas, they're going

          6  to be in the commercial areas, or they're going to

          7  be where there's a transportation hub. They're going

          8  to move all the time.

          9                 During the non-peak hours, off-peak

         10  hours, they move or they get calls, but there

         11  certainly isn't that huge crush and this enormous

         12  demand. Do you see that addressed in any way in

         13  working with you and the industry for what the

         14  Council apparently is looking to address as an

         15  issue?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, first let me

         17  start by thanking you for the compliment, and say

         18  that the feeling is mutual, it's an absolute

         19  pleasure working with you, and I feel like your

         20  community has become my second home, because there

         21  are so many quality of life issues in your area, and

         22  we're mindful of that. And I know that members of

         23  the community groups of the meetings that we attend

         24  in your district where you are always at, are

         25  concerned about noise, they're concerned about
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          2  double-parking, they're concerned about all sorts of

          3  other things that go along with having vehicles, a

          4  tremendous amount of vehicles picking up hails and

          5  causing congestion in the area.

          6                 So, in answer to your question, what

          7  I would recommend is that in addition to the obvious

          8  budgetary issues that go along with basically

          9  ensuring that, you know, that there's order at any

         10  stand so-to-speak, whether it's, you know, even a

         11  relief stand, because a relief stand, because relief

         12  stands themselves, you know, they may be used

         13  possibly for illegal activity, in terms of picking

         14  up passengers if they're not properly located.

         15                 Relief stands are intended to be

         16  talking spaces for yellow cabs and for some livery

         17  vehicles, so they can use the restrooms, they can

         18  get some lunch, you know, so my answer to your

         19  question would be, in addition to the fiscal

         20  considerations that we have to look at, and making

         21  sure that a new bureaucracy isn't created, we need

         22  to inject quality of life into the equation, however

         23  that's done. I know the bill has some factors that

         24   -- factors that are somewhat similar to the factors

         25  that the DOT and the TLC used to establish relief
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          2  stands. So I would suggest that as we further

          3  contemplate and discuss these issues, that we make

          4  sure that the quality of life in the communities are

          5  not negatively impacted by the creation of a stand

          6  to fill a transportation need.

          7                 And I know that that's a big issue in

          8  your community.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, I think

         10  it could probably be an issue anywhere, but

         11  certainly enforcement is a key issue, which means

         12  that with these relief bases, enforcement would have

         13  to be very strong. If there is a problem now with

         14  enforcement due to lack of manpower and we're going

         15  into fiscal constraints, those bases would require

         16  additional enforcement, taking it away from looking

         17  at the enforcement in those illegal cabs that are

         18  doing this, or, you know, livery service.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: I couldn't agree

         20  with you more on that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Do you see that

         22  happening?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the

         24  enforcement, we do not have the ability right now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I understand

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: If we had to

          4  implement the system with let's say ten stands right

          5  now with our existing enforcement, we would have to

          6  pull from other things that we're doing, such as

          7  combatting service refusals, and the number one

          8  priority that we've established, which is to

          9  eradicate unlicensed car service bases, and

         10  unlicensed vehicles and drivers, so that would

         11  present an even greater challenge.

         12                 I'm not saying that we can't talk

         13  about creative ways that we could assess this

         14  situation and address this problem or this issue.

         15  Some here might argue whether it's a problem or not,

         16  you may get some testimony I'm sure today saying,

         17  well, this is an additional need, it's an additional

         18  service, that technically in theory if you look at

         19  the law the way it's written, everything should work

         20  like clock work, and then you have some people in

         21  the community who will say, you know, we want this

         22  and we want that, and that's fine, but the

         23  practicality is that when you have a free market,

         24  and it is a free market, as much as there's

         25  regulation to set standards and enforce standards,
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          2  it's hard to say that we're going to give you a

          3  franchise or let you buy a medallion for over

          4  $200,000 and then say now you have to go here and

          5  you have to go there, even if that means you're

          6  going to make less money.

          7                 So, it's a challenge. It's an issue.

          8  The system has been built, right or wrong, over

          9  time. A combination of local laws that the Council

         10  passed and TLC regulation, establishing yellow cabs

         11  -- and, again, this is a system that does not exist

         12  anywhere in a similar way in the country.

         13                 New York City, as far as I'm aware

         14  of, is the only system where yellow cabs have an

         15  exclusive right to accept street hails. Every other

         16  City, and, again, every other City is not like New

         17  York, so I'm not saying it's right or wrong, but

         18  every other City has a combination of the ability

         19  for vehicles to pick up street hails and to take

         20  radio calls. And that's the way it used to be in the

         21  City years ago, and then the law was changed. And

         22  now you have all of these community car services and

         23  bases that basically built their careers and their

         24  lives and provided for their families and business

         25  goodwill based upon that system, both on the yellow
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          2  cab side, and on the community car service side.

          3                 So, again, going back to your initial

          4  question, enforcement is a major, major issue,

          5  because you could be creating a situation that's

          6  worse than it is, if you don't adequately provide

          7  for it, and there's an economy of scale that applies

          8  here, okay, like common sense would dictate, you

          9  want to start something small and go big, the

         10  problem is, though, in order to adequately staff a

         11  few stands throughout all of the City, that's going

         12  to probably cost a lot more for those few stands

         13  than to have 100 stands throughout the City where

         14  you can go from stand to stand and have staff

         15  deployed.

         16                 So, it would probably take more money

         17  to do ten stands than it would to take maybe 60, or

         18  50, in terms of not overall amounts of money or

         19  costs that would be attributed to it, but, you know,

         20  it's not like you can say that each stand has X

         21  amount of money in terms of enforcement and cost,

         22  including vehicles that enforcement have to take

         23  around with them. But as you create more and more

         24  and more stands, okay, even though that will cost

         25  more money, there comes a point where it levels off.

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  I hope I'm making my point.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You are. I

          4  understand it totally.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          7                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: You're welcome.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          9  Member Sears.

         10                 Last question from Council Member

         11  Seabrook.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         13  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 And, Commissioner, just a couple of

         15  questions. One is that the creation of these stands,

         16  what happens with existing stands that have never

         17  been in use in the last 30 years that are actually

         18  there? Never been used, use existing stands, exist

         19  in communities, never utilized; why not utilize

         20  those stands?

         21                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's my

         22  understanding, Council Member, that they are being

         23  utilized. Very infrequently by yellow cabs, but more

         24  frequently by livery vehicles that are pulling up,

         25  which kind of highlights the whole issue that we're
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          2  discussing here today.

          3                 At rushhour, in the Bronx, for

          4  instance, there is a stand in the Kingsbridge area

          5  of the Bronx that's still operational but it's being

          6  operated by liveries. The liveries pull up there

          7  from car services and they just basically -- and

          8  they're licensed, many of them, but they're also

          9  unlicensed operators there, which is the problem,

         10  and the licensed vehicles pick up passengers and

         11  take them from point to point as a yellow cab would.

         12  That is the whole issue.

         13                 So, in answer to your question, there

         14  are stands that used to be occupied years ago by

         15  yellow cabs that used to go to those areas. Right

         16  now they're basically being used by, from what we've

         17  seen, a combination of livery vehicles and yellow

         18  cabs, but predominantly, overwhelmingly livery

         19  vehicles, unlicensed, some unlicensed with us, who

         20  are basically picking passengers up to places where

         21  they want to go.

         22                 So, those standards do exist and so

         23  that's something that needs to be discussed.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER WOLOCH: And if I

         25  could just add, in terms of stands where there is no
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          2  use, where they're underutilized, if that's brought

          3  to our attention, that there's an existing stand

          4  that's taking up space, it's not adding any value,

          5  we will assess whether it should be removed or

          6  whether it could be relocated to a more appropriate

          7  location.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Just a

          9  couple of questions. Is this a real problem of not

         10  having these services? The purposes of this bill was

         11  to address a problem; is there a problem,

         12  Commissioner? Is there a necessity for this bill?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Well, the problem

         14  is that the law says it's illegal to pick up street

         15  hails for liveries to do so, and for black cars, and

         16  they're doing it. That's the problem.

         17                 The question is whether the problem

         18  will be solved by livery stands, in terms of this

         19  bill, or by more enforcement across the board.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: But it is a

         21  problem.

         22                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The problem is the

         23  violation of the law.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: The bill I believe
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          2  is seeking to not only address a problem, but also

          3  looking to enhance service.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: That's my

          6  understanding of the intention of the bill is to

          7  meet a need that, you know, passengers might say are

          8  voting with their feet, you know, let's see if

          9  there's a way that government can intervene to

         10  structure the law such that, you know, passengers'

         11  needs can be met.

         12                 And the other aspect of that also is

         13  that currently, and it's, we need to acknowledge

         14  that up front, the undeniable fact is that the law

         15  is violated, not only in the Central Business

         16  District, but throughout the entire City. And,

         17  again, it's an enforcement challenge to basically

         18  apply that law, it really is.

         19                 I mean, you have not just the issue

         20  of service in the boroughs outside Manhattan, you

         21  have a tremendous issue in the Central Business

         22  District of licensed for-hire vehicles, including

         23  not only liveries that are coming from areas outside

         24  of the Central Business District, but black cars,

         25  luxury town cars, that while they're waiting for
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          2  their radio calls, will take a couple of illegal

          3  street hails. I've seen it myself firsthand. I

          4  haven't gotten into them, but I've seen it. I've

          5  tried to hail a yellow cab, and, you know, what do I

          6  get? I get two or three limousines pulling over and

          7  black cars. It's a reality, you could put your hand

          8  up in the middle of the Central Business District.

          9  There's a poaching issue. Whether you agree with it

         10  or not two systems were created. People invested

         11  money in getting car services and black car bases,

         12  and a whole bunch of other people, including small

         13  business owners, thousands of individually owned and

         14  operated medallions that people took out loans in

         15  excess of $200,000 to make a better life for

         16  themselves, and they have an investment that's on

         17  the line of being diminished and devalued, whether

         18  you agree or not, in terms of service to the public,

         19  they made investments and there's poaching going on

         20  between the industries. And, you know, it's a more

         21  complicated issue than just putting stands. It's

         22  something that we really need to think about, and,

         23  you know, I just want to say that we appreciate the

         24  Council looking into actually trying to look at this

         25  problem and enhance service. The intentions are pure
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          2  and the intentions are good, but you know, we're in

          3  a very, very difficult situation. You know, we have

          4  a tremendous budget deficit, and the reality is, and

          5  I guess the number one point of the testimony is,

          6  the biggest challenge here is not just the

          7  bureaucracy, but it is the fact that you need

          8  enforcement. If you're going to put a stand, if

          9  you're going to create, change the law, do what you

         10  want to do with it, you know, you'd need to have an

         11  enforcement commitment. And if you can't make that

         12  commitment in the overall scheme or priorities for

         13  the City of New York, then it's going to be very

         14  problematic. And it's not a cop out, it's just that

         15  we need, there's a lot of work that needs to be done

         16  and it needs to be discussed, and I know that the

         17  Council is not going to be voting on this, but

         18  they're going to, of course, continue to listen as

         19  they advance the issue and look for solutions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Quick

         21  question. If there is a case of a need and a

         22  concern, doesn't enforcement bring two things? One,

         23  it brings safety and it also enhances revenue?

         24                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Right. Enforcement

         25  does not exist for the purpose of revenue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I understand

          3  that.

          4                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: Enforcement exists

          5  for the purpose of making sure that the law is

          6  adhered to.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: That's what

          8  I said, safety as well as revenue producing, so it's

          9  a combination of those things that's there.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: And that's

         11  something, obviously, that one would look into in

         12  doing a fiscal analysis.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay, thank

         14  you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much,

         16  Commissioner Daus, and Deputy Commissioner Woloch,

         17  for joining us in this public hearing today. And I

         18  know that my colleagues and I look forward to

         19  working with you and the Administration to fashion a

         20  bill that will address what is clearly a need out

         21  there.

         22                 Thanks a lot.

         23                 COMMISSIONER DAUS: It's our pleasure.

         24                 Thanks for inviting us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'd like to invite
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          2  our next panel up to testify. We have David Pollack

          3  and David Beier, both from the Committee for Taxi

          4  Safety. And immediately following this panel, I'd

          5  like to invite Ron Sherman, from the Metropolitan

          6  Taxi Board of Trade, and Michael Levine from a

          7  couple of different companies, to testify. And I

          8  just mention that now so you can prepare.

          9                 We have been joined by Council

         10  members Miguel Martinez, from Manhattan, Andrew

         11  Lanza, from Staten Island, and James Sanders, Jr.,

         12  from Queens.

         13                 I'd like to ask these Council

         14  Members, and members of this Committee, whether

         15  they'd like to cast a vote on three motions that

         16  were passed earlier this morning. The three motions

         17  are one receiving the messages from the Mayor

         18  vetoing Intro. 6 and Intro. 37, and then a second

         19  vote on Intro. 6, repassing it out of this

         20  Committee, notwithstanding the objection of the

         21  Mayor, and a third vote being a vote on Intro. 37 to

         22  repass it out of this Committee, notwithstanding the

         23  objections of the Mayor. These, all three motions

         24  were voted on six to zero by Committee members,

         25  Larry Seabrook, Helen Sears, Joe Addabbo, Eva

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Moskowitz, Oliver Koppell and myself, and I'd ask if

          3  you'd like to cast your ballots on this.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Point of

          5  information, sir?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: If we did not

          8  receive this message from the Mayor, what would

          9  happen?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We would not have to

         11  vote on it again.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Well, in

         13  deference to our good Mayor, I would not only want

         14  to say yes we should receive his message, but we

         15  should also vote to send these things out of

         16  Committee again to pass them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So your vote on the

         18  three motions?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes, sir. Aye

         20  to all three.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes on all three is

         22  that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Lanza.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. I vote aye on all.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And

          5  Council Member Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye on all.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          8                 I'd like to ask the clerk to continue

          9  to keep your vote open on all three items.

         10                 Good morning. We have Ron Sherman,

         11  and I'm sorry, David Pollack, and David Beier.

         12  Thanks for joining us.

         13                 MR. POLLACK: Good morning, Council

         14  members, Chairman Liu.

         15                 My name is David Pollack, and I'm

         16  here to testify on behalf of the Committee for Taxi

         17  Safety, an Association that represents 2,500 taxi

         18  medallion owners, leasers and the 5,000 men and

         19  women who drive their taxis.

         20                 Off the testimony, frankly, I think

         21  we have something that is a good beginning to help

         22  solve a problem that's faced New York City probably

         23  since the medallion was created.

         24                 We offer eight suggestions that we

         25  believe will strengthen your bill, and we commend
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          2  Councilman Liu for the new initiative represented in

          3  this proposed legislation.

          4                 The law should provide for the

          5  proposed changes as a pilot program with the

          6  provision for data gathering and evaluation at the

          7  end of a specific period. Such a sunset provision

          8  would allow the Council to consider whether the law

          9  remedy the problem as you intended.

         10                 Since large portions of Manhattan are

         11  well served by yellow cabs, Manhattan stands should

         12  be limited to areas of need above 179th Street. All

         13  other stands should be reserved for the other four

         14  boroughs where there was presumably a need for them.

         15                 There is no need for additional

         16  service at either New York City airport.

         17                 We suggest that each stand be

         18  licensed and that the licenses be sold by the City

         19  to a specific base which would serve that stand

         20  exclusively for a specific term. This would generate

         21  revenue for the City that could pay for the

         22  administration of the program, while holding a

         23  specific base responsible for the quality and level

         24  of service.

         25                 Dispatchers should be placed at the
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          2  stands during peak hours to ensure an orderly

          3  approach by coordinating all pick-ups and by making

          4  sure license safe vehicles for the public are being

          5  used.

          6                 The dispatcher can also call the base

          7  every time a fare is needed, or additional fares are

          8  needed, with a phone with a direct connection to the

          9  base, placed at the stands for immediate access to

         10  additional vehicles.

         11                 As part of the licensing, the bid

         12  should specify the type year of vehicles to be used

         13  at the stands, as well as vehicular amenities, such

         14  as air conditioning, so as to provide better cars to

         15  the public.

         16                 As you know, there are some very old

         17  vehicles in particularly poor shape among the pool

         18  of non-yellow cabs.

         19                 As part of the bid for license, we

         20  urge you to consider requiring proof and maintenance

         21  of a sufficient amount of liability insurance. We

         22  suggest that for Manhattan only a share a ride

         23  program at designated locations, such as Penn

         24  Station, Grand Central Station and the Port

         25  Authority Terminal be implemented on an as need
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          2  basis.

          3                 Finally, in a cooperative effort with

          4  the Council, we support the solution offered by

          5  Intro. 267, subject to the modifications discussed

          6  here today, and agree that stands be created for

          7  liveries and car services so as to ensure the outer

          8  boroughs are being served. However, by granting this

          9  concession, we resume our request for a genuine

         10  effort of the strict enforcement of the no hail

         11  rules.

         12                 Additionally, an increase in fines

         13  for such illegal pick-ups, along with this strict

         14  enforcement, will preserve the integrity of the

         15  yellow medallion industry.

         16                 Surely, the goals of serving the

         17  outer boroughs and protecting the yellow industry

         18  can both be served and accomplished.

         19                 Chairman Liu, we thank you for your

         20  invitation to testify. We urge you to incorporate

         21  our recommendations in the final draft of this

         22  commendable legislation.

         23                 David Beier is not testifying but he

         24  is here to answer questions with me today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Are there any
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          2  questions from the members of this Committee?

          3                 Council Member Seabrook.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.

          6                 Just a quick question.

          7                 What is the fine now for the illegal

          8  pick-up for hail? What is that fine?

          9                 MR. POLLACK: It's not enough,

         10  whatever it is.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

         12                 MR. POLLACK: I think the vehicle

         13  should be impounded, and the fine should be a

         14  minimum of a thousand dollars. That's my opinion

         15  personally.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mr.

         18  Chairman?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

         20  Martinez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Your fourth

         22  recommendation, when you ask for a dispatcher should

         23  be placed at the stand during peak hours; who would

         24  be responsible for the dispatcher? I know there's

         25  some issues with dispatchers already that do similar
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          2  to what you're recommending, so what kind of

          3  dispatcher are you talking about? The base station,

          4  the City, TLC, whom will be the dispatch hire?

          5                 MR. BEIER: We're talking about the

          6  licensing of the franchise or the specific location

          7  by the base that the City would have enough money

          8  from the licenses that they're selling, to have

          9  administrators or dispatchers at the location to

         10  ensure that the cars that are lining up at these

         11  specific locations are part of the base, are

         12  licensed, the drivers are licensed, so that ensures

         13  that compliance. The fees would be raised by this

         14  and they could have a dispatcher there.

         15                 If the bases want to have a

         16  dispatcher there, they could do that as well, so

         17  that as these drivers picked up fares, the base

         18  would be called so that the drivers would not be

         19  taking fares outside of the base.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, you're

         21  saying that if there's a stand, and the cars are

         22  lining up, you have to put a dispatch that will make

         23  sure that drivers call in their pick-up, where

         24  they're going and their fare?

         25                 MR. BEIER: Yes, and also for the
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          2  enforcement to make sure the cars that are there are

          3  licensed by the regulatory agency and the drivers

          4  are licensed, absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Martinez.

          8                 Your suggestion, item number seven,

          9  to create a share a ride program at those designated

         10  transit hubs, is that something that should be done

         11  as part of this bill?

         12                 MR. BEIER: It can be done as part of

         13  the bill.

         14                 Obviously the bill is aimed at making

         15  sure the public receives proper service at all

         16  times, not only in the outer boroughs, but for

         17  Manhattan. And our suggestion is that as Manhattan

         18  is well served, perhaps the solution is not to

         19  create stands, but rather to do a share a ride

         20  program at these key locations, which is probably

         21  all you need in Manhattan and doesn't take away the

         22  vital space in Manhattan.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 And is it your opinion that if

         25  someone is leaving, say, Columbia Presbyterian
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          2  Hospital at 168th Street, are they going to be able

          3  to get a cab off the street real quick?

          4                 MR. BEIER: There are stands there

          5  now, there are yellow cabs there now, and you still

          6  have the facility of being able to call for a

          7  pick-up if that's what you would like to do. So we

          8  do think that there is transportation available.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And that opinion

         10  applies to all of Manhattan south of 179th Street?

         11                 MR. BEIER: Yes, we believe that

         12  Manhattan is well served by the yellow cab industry.

         13  We think the problem particularly relates to the

         14  outer boroughs. There may be a perceived shortage

         15  during rush hour times at Manhattan at these key

         16  locations like the Port Authority, Grand Central, N

         17  Station, and that's why we suggest a share a ride

         18  program to resolve that issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         20                 Are there any other questions for

         21  members of this Committee?

         22                 Council Member Martinez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I just want

         24  to go back, whenever you refer to licensing, isn't

         25  it true already that before a driver can incorporate
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          2  himself into a base, he needs to have licensing from

          3  TLC, needs to have the proper driver's license to

          4  incorporate himself into the TLC, and there are

          5  certain stickers and permits that the vehicle needs

          6  to have in terms of inspection. They do drug testing

          7  on the drivers already, such as the yellow cab.

          8                 So, for example, I live in Northern

          9  Manhattan. I've seen designated areas for taxi

         10  stands, and I have never, ever, even in 168 where

         11  the Chairman made reference to, I have never seen a

         12  yellow cab standing there waiting for passengers.

         13                 My concern is that if what you're

         14  asking for is for these stands to be licensed to the

         15  base, and the City not willing to commit the

         16  resources because of the economic situation that

         17  we're going through, to put the personnel available

         18  to regulate or monitor the stands, that we're going

         19  to have some ugly situations with cabs that are not

         20  members of a base trying to get into the line.

         21                 MR. BEIER: That's why we would have

         22  the dispatcher placed there and that's why we would

         23  sell these franchises for these locations so the

         24  City would have the revenue to place a dispatcher

         25  there and pay for the administration of the program.
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          2  And the problem is that there are illegal pick-ups,

          3  not only from people who are licensed by the bases,

          4  but people who are driving cars who aren't licensed

          5  by any base, and that's what we're looking to stop.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, in other

          7  words, through a competitive bidding process you're

          8  proposing that the different stands be allocated to

          9  the different bidders, or people who submit their

         10  request?

         11                 MR. BEIER: That's correct. And we

         12  also think it would improve the quality of the cars

         13  and the quality of the drivers because that would be

         14  part of the bidding process.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And what

         16  kind of subsidy would the City put available for the

         17  maintenance of the vehicles?

         18                 MR. BEIER: I'm not sure the City

         19  would put any subsidy. Just as the yellow medallions

         20  don't get a subsidy from the City, I think it's up

         21  to the bases to maintain their own cars.

         22                 MR. POLLACK: We're certainly willing

         23  to accept subsidies from the City.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But you

         25  understand that it's a different phenomenon between
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          2  the yellow cabs and the bases, because most of the

          3  cars are independently owned, so now we're asking

          4  for the bases.

          5                 MR. BEIER: But the yellow medallions

          6  have the same thing. We have something known as a

          7  DOV, a Driver-Owned Vehicle, where there are

          8  thousands of yellow cab drivers who own their

          9  vehicles but not the medallion, they must maintain

         10  their own vehicles. It's the same exact thing.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. A

         13  question from Council Member Sanders.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair. I again congratulate you for bringing

         16  some of the most interesting issues to the City

         17  Council. In fact, you should lend me your issues so

         18  I can bring it to my committee.

         19                 Since you're not going to do that,

         20  sir, let me congratulate these gentlemen for coming

         21  up with some very, very bold concepts.

         22                 I especially like the idea, I'm the

         23  Chair of Economic Development, I like the idea of

         24  selling franchises to whoever wishes to buy them. I

         25  think that that may allow us to subsidize other
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          2  stands, other places, if you wish, because while

          3  there may be a lot of people to be picked up on 34th

          4  Street, just to say, there may be fewer to be picked

          5  up in the Rockaways, Queens, which may need a

          6  subsidy. I know you don't believe that, but it's

          7  true, that it may need a subsidy to have a

          8  dispatcher if that was appropriate for that type of

          9  area. So, I do encourage our chair that some of

         10  these ideas are very good. I'm sure all of them are,

         11  but some of them are excellent. Let me put it that

         12  way.

         13                 MR. BEIER: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         16                 Council Member Sears has a question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank

         18  you.

         19                 My question is that, do you believe

         20  there is a market for these franchises? Based on the

         21  fact that the success to this program is of very

         22  strict enforcement, and that enforcement is beyond

         23  their control?

         24                 MR. BEIER: We believe that the whole

         25  transportation industry, the black cars, livery, the
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          2  yellows, all want strict enforcement, and we think

          3  that through the selling of these franchises, that

          4  the City would have additional money by which to

          5  enforce, and thereby provide as an end result better

          6  service for the public.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So then

          8  actually a part of the medallion sale should be a

          9  dedicated fund to enforcement.

         10                 MR. BEIER: Well, we could do it

         11  through that, or we could do it through, as we said,

         12  selling specific bases, selling to specific bases

         13  the locations.

         14                 MR. POLLACK: The lack of enforcement

         15  is probably the reason we're in this situation we

         16  are in in the outer boroughs at this time.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I agree. I

         18  think that is a general consensus, and my basic

         19  question was, for these franchises, it would depend

         20  very heavily on enforcement.

         21                 MR. BEIER: Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 MR. BEIER: You're welcome.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Just going
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          2  back to the franchises, now, in the stands, will

          3  more than one base be able to participate to take

          4  part of the stand, the franchise of a stand, or just

          5  one particular stand per base?

          6                 MR. BEIER: Our concept is that one

          7  base per stand, although it's up to the City to

          8  decide that, that's a detail that can be worked out

          9  in the City except this type of a proposal.

         10                 MR. POLLACK: We're going to leave

         11  that to you, although I can imagine, various

         12  companies in similar neighborhoods sharing the

         13  stands if they pay the fee.

         14                 MR. BEIER: Obviously, if you make it

         15  exclusive, the franchise fee or the bid will be

         16  higher, than if you make it non-exclusive. It's up

         17  to the City to weigh which way they want to go with

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, you

         20  strongly believe that with the stands, the issue of

         21  hail pick-up in the outer borough will be addressed?

         22                 MR. BEIER: We think service to the

         23  public will be addressed. We need help with the

         24  illegal hail pick-ups in the outer borough. We need

         25  enforcement to make the stands work, to make the
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          2  public be served by safe cars and safe drivers, and

          3  we need the City's help on that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, let me

          5  ask you something. What is the yellow cab industry

          6  doing to address the issue of not having cabs

          7  available in the outer borough, especially in

          8  commercial areas? For example, Grand Concourse,

          9  181st Street, in Brooklyn, I don't know Brooklyn,

         10  Queens.

         11                 MR. POLLACK: I think one of the next

         12  speakers will confirm there's a large fleet in the

         13  Bronx. One of our leasing agents, a member of the

         14  Committee for Taxi Safety, is up at Westchester

         15  Square. There are a number. I wish the TLC stayed.

         16  They never stay for anyone else's testimony, because

         17  sometimes facts and figures can come from them that

         18  we're not aware of.

         19                 I don't know how many licensed yellow

         20  drivers live in the Bronx or in Queens or in

         21  Rockaway, but there is a presence. And contrary to

         22  what you've seen, my cardiologist is at Columbia

         23  Presbyterian, and every time I've come out, there's

         24  been at least one yellow cab on Fort Washington

         25  Avenue at that taxi stand. I just wanted to tell you
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          2  that.

          3                 MR. BEIER: But there is a problem. We

          4  realize there is a problem. And it's hard for the

          5  yellow industry, because as Commissioner, as

          6  Chairperson Daus stated, in a free economy, the

          7  people are going to gravitate, the drivers will

          8  gravitate towards where there's the most business.

          9  So, while the fleets and the management companies

         10  can put up notices saying that, you know, service is

         11  needed in the outer boroughs, the drivers are always

         12  going to be, you know, focusing on where they can

         13  earn the most money, and if that's in Manhattan,

         14  that's why they're there. That issue does remain.

         15  And this bill, this proposal is a way to try to

         16  resolve that issue.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         19                 Are there any other questions from

         20  Committee members?

         21                 Thank you, gentlemen. I just wanted

         22  to point out that, you know, we are trying to

         23  address a problem here. To me the problem is that

         24  people on the outer boroughs can't get an off-street

         25  hail. They just can't do it. At least not legally.
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          2  So I think that's the problem that we're getting at

          3  and it's caused, not to me it's not caused by lack

          4  of enforcement, it's caused by economics, which is

          5  what you mentioned, Mr. Beier. Not by the lack of

          6  enforcement that I heard, and I may have misheard

          7  you mentioning, Mr. Pollack. So, I think the problem

          8  we're trying to address is one that's related to

          9  economics.

         10                 MR. POLLACK: What I meant was if

         11  there was enforcement starting in 19 -- I think it

         12  was '31, against illegal street hails, people, I

         13  hate to use the word trained, but people would know,

         14  if you're not going to take a yellow cab, you simply

         15  pick up your phone in the house, pick up your cell

         16  phone, call a local car service and in five minutes

         17  a car will be there. That's what I meant, enforcing

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, thank you.

         20                 And I want to thank you for these

         21  very thoughtful suggestions that you have put forth.

         22  And in fact, that is why we're having this public

         23  hearing, to solicit input from the public and

         24  anybody else who has an interest in this, to try to

         25  fashion a bill that will be good for New Yorkers.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 I would like to ask the next panel to

          4  come up. Ron Sherman, and Michael Levine. And they

          5  will be followed by Eugene Pero and Steven Spencer,

          6  unless there's any objection, who would like to come

          7  up with Mr. Pero? Okay, thank you. Perhaps the three

          8  of you can prepare to testify next.

          9                 Welcome, Ron.

         10                 MR. SHERMAN: Good morning, Chairman

         11  Liu, and members of the Committee. My name is Ron

         12  Sherman. I am President of Metropolitan Taxicab

         13  Board of Trade, a yellow taxicab trade organization.

         14                 In its current form, Intro. 267 has

         15  virtually no limitations. For example, there is no

         16  need for livery stands in Manhattan below 179th

         17  Street or at the airport and that must be stipulated

         18  in this legislation.

         19                 Passage of this legislation, as is,

         20  would amount to due regulation of the taxi

         21  industries. Deregulation has been a failure when

         22  tried in other cities across the country. Today,

         23  only four cities in the United States maintain such

         24  systems, while 17 American cities have opted to

         25  re-regulate after failed experiments over the last
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          2  quarter century.

          3                 We have distributed a fact sheet on

          4  deregulation to the members of the Committee.

          5                 I'd like to offer a few suggestions.

          6  Number one, it should be conducted as a pilot

          7  program so that the City can assess whether the

          8  stands are addressing the needs of the public.

          9                 Number two, it must be paired by a

         10  crackdown on illegal street hails by liveries,

         11  particularly in Manhattan and at the airports.

         12                 Number three, consider franchising

         13  these stands so that livery base stations can bid

         14  for the right to pick up at individual stands. The

         15  base station with the contract can be accountable

         16  for all safety and consumer complaints and it will

         17  generate revenue for the City.

         18                 There are also a number of questions

         19  that this legislation needs to address. What data

         20  will be used to determine whether a particular area

         21  is underserved by yellow taxicab service?

         22                 Will an EIS be performed for each

         23  stand? Where there be a visible photo ID of the

         24  driver displayed in the livery vehicles that are

         25  permitted to pick-up at these stands?
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          2                 Will there be a TLC complaint number

          3  posted?

          4                 How will passengers know that their

          5  driver is insured to accept street hails? In other

          6  words, will passengers who use these stands be as

          7  safe as passengers who use pre-arranged service? Or

          8  passengers who hail a licensed yellow taxicab in

          9  Midtown-Manhattan.

         10                 Will the TLC regulate fares, or must

         11  passengers haggle with the drivers?

         12                 Who will passengers know the cost of

         13  a ride without consulting the base station

         14  beforehand?

         15                 What protection does the passenger

         16  have from being overcharged?

         17                 Who will enforce activities at these

         18  livery stands? The TLC? The NYPD?

         19                 I would like to conclude my testimony

         20  by placing this legislation in context with our

         21  City's $5 billion budget deficit.

         22                 Earlier this year, the City of New

         23  York announced that it was considering auctioning

         24  hundreds of more medallions, which could provide

         25  tens of millions of dollars in badly needed revenues
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          2  to the City.

          3                 However, investors will not purchase

          4  these medallions which entitle them to the exclusive

          5  right to pick up street hails, if that right is

          6  simply given away.

          7                 In addition, the City must protect

          8  the medallion owners who have already paid for this

          9  right.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         12                 Mr. Levine.

         13                 MR. LEVINE: Mr. Chairman, esteemed

         14  members of the City Council, ladies and gentlemen,

         15  my name is Michael Levine. I'm Vice President of

         16  Ronart Leasing Corp., a yellow medallion taxicab

         17  fleet currently operating 232 medallions in the City

         18  of New York.

         19                 I'm also president of Rembrandt

         20  Transportation, the TLC licensed livery company,

         21  operating in Sheepshead Bay, Brooklyn, and the

         22  President of All American Car Service, a TLC

         23  licensed livery company operating in Long Island

         24  City, Queens.

         25                 I was until this past June the
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          2  Transportation Committee Chair of Manhattan

          3  Community Board 5, and I was also co-chair of the

          4  Consents and Variances Committee, which puts up all

          5  the stands with DOT.

          6                 These credentials make me unique and

          7  qualified to testify on Intro. 267, as I would

          8  experience the taxicab, liveries, and public

          9  transportation complaints.

         10                 267 is admirable. It looks to address

         11  one of the biggest complaints in the entire

         12  transportation system: I can't get a cab when I need

         13  one. All of you know that. Everyone here knows that.

         14  And the issue that in addressing though -- in

         15  addressing inequality of service, you could be

         16  creating a discriminatory and highly dangerous

         17  situation for outer borough residents.

         18                 For example, if I stop a cab in the

         19  City by hailing, I know it's rigorously inspected

         20  three times a year. I know the police and the TLC

         21  officers are continually monitoring that vehicle as

         22  it drives through the City, and I know its driver

         23  has been tested and approved by the TLC for English

         24  proficiency and geographical knowledge.

         25                 I know the vehicle has a designated
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          2  minimum interior cubic volume, I know it has air

          3  conditioning in the front and the rear, I know it

          4  has a bulletproof partition, I know it has other

          5  safety items. I know it was purchased new and not

          6  used, and I know it has a designated maximum use of

          7  a lifespan.

          8                 The most important features of a

          9  yellow medallion taxicab, however, is that it's

         10  easily distinguishable to all citizens, tourists,

         11  the rest of the riding public, as a TLC-licensed

         12  vehicle by its color, and its medallion markings,

         13  and that its fare is strictly regulated by the City

         14  of New York.

         15                 As a potential rider, if I see a

         16  yellow vehicle with the medallion number on the

         17  rooftop or the door, I'm reasonably certain the

         18  vehicles have all of the above-mentioned qualities,

         19  and I know that my fare will be consistent from

         20  vehicle to vehicle.

         21                 In order to qualify as a livery

         22  vehicle and be licensed by the TLC, a vehicle has to

         23  have four doors. That's pretty much it.

         24                 My wife's 1993 Ford Taurus

         25  stationwagon passes the same inspection every year
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          2  as my livery cabs have to pass. They have to go

          3  through one more, a couple more inspections than my

          4  wife's, but basically you drive in and you can pass.

          5  These inspections are not done by TLC officials,

          6  they're done by garages in the streets where

          7  corruption is very rampant.

          8                 I could register my wife's older

          9  vehicle, a 1973 Nissan Stanza, as a livery vehicle

         10  right now, which would not qualify as a taxicab. But

         11  the point that I'm trying to make is that, we don't

         12  want to help out the citizens of the outer boroughs

         13  by saying to them, well, you're not as good as the

         14  citizens in Manhattan, you're not entitled to a new

         15  vehicle, you're not entitled to all these things.

         16                 So, this is not addressed by 267.

         17                 Also, as a livery owner, when I first

         18  bought my base station, as all owner drivers, at

         19  peak times when I needed my owner drivers to service

         20  my clients, the owner drivers were out in the street

         21  picking up their own work. Sure, they're going to be

         22  around at 10:00, 11:00 in the afternoon saying you

         23  have a call for me? But at 4:00 in the afternoon, I

         24  can't get anybody to pick up my own customers. So,

         25  we eliminated all owner drivers, and now I operate
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          2  my own vehicles.

          3                 My drivers know that they have to be

          4  available for the base.

          5                 The people who are currently picking

          6  up in the street now are flaunting a law, and what

          7  267 is basically saying to them is, hey, you can be

          8  a pick pocket and you're breaking the law, so to

          9  eliminate pick-pocketing in the City of New York,

         10  we're going to allow you to take people -- things

         11  legally out of people's pockets. It's not really

         12  helping the situation. It's taking a situation

         13  that's already there, and making it legal.

         14                 Are we going to be adding any

         15  service? No, because the people who are going to be

         16  manning these stands are already picking up in these

         17  streets. So, if you can't get a cab now, you're not

         18  going to be getting a cab then.

         19                 What we are doing is taking a few of

         20  the people who are picking up legally with the base

         21  stations and saying to them, okay, now it's all

         22  right for you to go to these stands as well, so the

         23  older citizens and the people who can't get these

         24  stands will now have even less service than they had

         25  before.
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          2                 Furthermore, there's already an

          3  insurance crisis in the livery industry. It is very

          4  difficult to even get insurance on anything larger

          5  than a four-passenger vehicle, and the rates of

          6  insurance have gone up by 50 percent in the last two

          7  years.

          8                 If the insurance companies now know

          9  that the vehicles are picking up in the street, as

         10  well as through radios, the insurance is going to go

         11  up further, and it may go up to the point where it

         12  is no longer feasible to operate a legal livery at

         13  all.

         14                 At this point I'm going to kind of

         15  deviate from my prepared speech because a lot of

         16  these questions have been answered, and a lot of the

         17  questions that you guys have asked have not to my

         18  satisfaction been sufficiently answered.

         19                 You asked about 168th Street. I was

         20  there last night. If you walked outside, you may or

         21  may not get a yellow, but you can walk inside and

         22  hit a phone that's already sitting there, and one of

         23  Rayno's cars will come and pick you up, and this is

         24  a system that works in a lot of other hospitals.

         25                 It also should work reasonably well
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          2  on the street. If you have these stands, you can

          3  have certain bases that pay a fee to the City to

          4  have authorization to pick up there.

          5                 You will not, however, come even

          6  close to paying for the bill of having somebody

          7  stand there, because the economics of the livery

          8  industry aren't there to do that.

          9                 What it cost to have a City employee

         10  and all the benefits that that entails, standing at

         11  a livery stand could not possibly be covered by the

         12  number of calls you can get at one of these stands.

         13                 To go back a step further. You were

         14  saying that it's an economic issue, it's an

         15  enforcement issue, well, it's both.

         16                 The fact of the matter is, if there

         17  was enough enforcement so that people were not

         18  picking up illegally in the outer boroughs, there

         19  would be money there for the taxicab to go there.

         20                 Right now if I'm a yellow cab driver,

         21  I'm not going to go to Brooklyn, because I know

         22  there's 80 illegal liveries sitting in downtown

         23  Brooklyn waiting to pick up that fare that should be

         24  mine. By law it should be mine, but I can't get it

         25  because everybody else is standing there, driving
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          2  around.

          3                 The TLC is saying they're enforcing,

          4  but they're not even enforcing against the illegal,

          5  illegal liveries.

          6                 I had a contract at Brookdale

          7  Hospital which I had to give up, because if you walk

          8  out of Brookdale Hospital there's ten guys with

          9  private plates standing there saying "need a cab?

         10  Need a cab? Need a cab?" I informed the TLC of this

         11  ten times, nothing was done.

         12                 Now, the TLC doesn't have enough

         13  manpower to enforce this, I understand that. But if

         14  you have a situation where it cost you $1,000 if

         15  your car is within an illegal pick-up, then all this

         16  guy has to do, if you put 500 people on the road, it

         17  will pay for themselves.

         18                 I mean, yes, the issue of enforcement

         19  is not one of making revenue, but the system of

         20  putting fines on enforcement is to pay for the

         21  enforcement itself.

         22                 I believe Councilwoman Sears had

         23  asked before about if they sell new medallions,

         24  should they be given to enforcement? I believe back

         25  in 1993, when they raised the tax stamp from $100 to
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          2  $1,000, that specifically that money was to be

          3  earmarked for enforcement. That never happened.

          4                 All this money was supposed to be

          5  earmarked for enforcement. When Jack Lusk was

          6  Commissioner, they threw a bill that they could tow

          7  these vehicles. They did it for about three months

          8  and it was never done again.

          9                 As a livery driver, I know that I

         10  don't even have to own my own vehicle. I can get my

         11  sister-in-law, brother in law, the guy that lives

         12  next door to me to register a vehicle. I can now

         13  ensure it as a livery vehicle, I can associate with

         14  a base for 20 bucks a week, I never have to do any

         15  work with that base, and my name is nowhere on that

         16  vehicle, okay? So, even if they do start enforcing

         17  now, and they stop me from illegal pick-up, well,

         18  that car gets $1,000, even if they say my next door

         19  neighbor, whoever registered the car could never

         20  register again, I'd find somebody else.

         21                 As a taxi driver, if I want to have

         22  my own vehicle, if I want to buy my own medallion, I

         23  have to have a TLC license. I then associate my name

         24  with that license, I buy the medallion and I'm

         25  operating it.
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          2                 There's no, not only is there no

          3  enforcement in the livery industry, there's no

          4  accountability, and I think that's an even bigger

          5  problem.

          6                 How that affects 267? Again, if you

          7  enforce against the liveries, and you add more

          8  yellow cabs to the street, it will now be

          9  economically feasible for these people to go to

         10  these areas, and that's the crux of the problem.

         11  It's an economic problem, and it's got to be solved

         12  by economic measures.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And I

         14  think both of you have brought up some very good

         15  points.

         16                 You know, I think from what I've

         17  heard from people who are far more experienced in

         18  this industry, I think one of the main reasons that

         19  cabs don't go outside to Manhattan core business

         20  district is because even if you go to a place like

         21  Jamaica, which is a major transit hub, someone will

         22  get in near the subway station, but you take them to

         23  their destination point, and chances are there is

         24  not going to be a return trip. And that's in

         25  contrast to the Manhattan core, where you can take
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          2  someone from point A to point B and reasonably

          3  expect that there will be a fare to be picked up at

          4  point B.

          5                 And, so, I think it still is a major

          6  question of economics. I think you have a valid

          7  point that if there was tighter enforcement against

          8  the livery cars, making sure that they aren't

          9  picking up in places that have fewer taxicabs, then

         10  possibly you might get more taxicabs out there just

         11  because they won't have that illegal competition.

         12                 But I think there's still a question

         13  of economics, and I don't know how we necessarily

         14  deal with that with the current system, strict

         15  system, although I know it's hard to enforce, but

         16  the current system of medallion, yellow medallion

         17  cabs and licensed livery cars.

         18                 But I appreciate your comments today,

         19  and I also appreciate the suggestions that you've

         20  provided us, Mr. Sherman.

         21                 I think that a lot of it actually

         22  tracks the suggestions of the prior panel, and

         23  that's -- not that they came up with the ideas

         24  first, someone's got to testify first, so I

         25  certainly appreciate the suggestions.
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          2                 MR. SHERMAN: I think that where we

          3  might differ is that our -- the suggestions that we

          4  bringing up, we're bringing up as questions to

          5  what's in 267 and what needs to be done, and that we

          6  respectfully ask the Council to look at the current

          7  transportation system as a whole and be very careful

          8  about what is changed that might cause a rippling

          9  effect that will hurt legitimate livery businesses

         10  that do prearrangement and also yellow medallions

         11  which do non-prearrangement. Because I believe, in

         12  my opinion, that the livery businesses are doing a

         13  very good job now, and I believe that the yellow

         14  medallion industry is doing a very good job also.

         15  But I believe that the medallion industry could pick

         16  up where that little void is. If enforcement was, it

         17  is our only right to pick up on New York City

         18  streets. That enforcement is not being -- that right

         19  is not being enforced. By that right not being

         20  enforced, we are having a problem getting our cars,

         21  the 12,187 cars that we have, medallions that we

         22  have, we are having problems getting drivers to go

         23  out and work in those vehicles. If a driver couldn't

         24  just take his car or his wife's car and go out and

         25  work the streets and nobody bother him, he would
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          2  have to make a choice of being either a legal

          3  livery, doing prearranged or yellow doing

          4  non-prearranged, and in that respect than all this

          5  illegal activity wouldn't be there and there would

          6  be an opportunity for the yellows to step in and

          7  handle this business.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          9                 Are there questions?

         10                 Council Member Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: We've heard a

         12  lot about the violations of the law. I would just

         13  like to state that I think the yellow cabs and the

         14  liveries do do a job and we all know that, and

         15  they're dependable and they're well.

         16                 It seems that this Committee has to

         17  go back and review all the suggestions that have

         18  been made, and to work with this gap of where the

         19  good somehow has the violations of the law so

         20  imposed that it's discouraging people from really

         21  coming into the industry and doing their job.

         22                 Now, this industry is because people

         23  are doing a day's work, and they earn money and the

         24  providers who see to that, and I think that we have

         25  to look at that and respect it, and to look at how
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          2  we can correct the wrongs through the legislative

          3  process that doesn't create a myriad of entanglement

          4  of unnecessary law. So, I think that's what we have

          5  to do. And thank you for your suggestions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

          7                 I'm sorry, excuse me. We have a

          8  question from Council Member Sanders, and then from

          9  Council Member Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Levine, and President

         13  Sherman, for giving us these very thoughtful

         14  positions.

         15                 Now, I live in the Rockaways, Queens,

         16  which means that it's hell for me catching a cab, a

         17  yellow cab. It's just hell. I'm very grateful that a

         18  law was passed which says that both have to take me.

         19  Without that law, I would have done better to catch

         20  the subway to get home.

         21                 I can attest that our Chair is a very

         22  thoughtful person and will certainly take into

         23  account the things that you have put forward.

         24                 The only thing that I could think of,

         25  if we were trying to make a franchise work, would be

                                                            91

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  that a certain portion of that money should be

          3  dedicated for traffic, for enforcement. How much and

          4  under what conditions, of course, remains to be

          5  seen. But I'm anxious to speak at another moment,

          6  after reading your material and speaking more on

          7  this issue with you.

          8                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         10                 Council Member Martinez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair.

         13                 Mr. Levine, you mentioned that you

         14  own and operate a TLC-licensed livery company in

         15  Sheepshead; is that correct?

         16                 MR. LEVINE: Sheepshead, Brooklyn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

         18                 MR. LEVINE: Yes. We have one on

         19  Avenue X, McDonald Avenue in Brooklyn, and we have

         20  one in Long Island City, Queens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: And they are

         22  not driver owned?

         23                 MR. LEVINE: No, I own all the cars on

         24  my base.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So there's a
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          2  clear difference between driver owned and when you

          3  run a fleet. And when you run a fleet, you're

          4  basically the owner of the vehicles and the drivers

          5  are in essence your employee, correct? They respond

          6  to you?

          7                 MR. LEVINE: Yes and no. It depends on

          8  your definition. The IRS has one definition of

          9  employee, you know, the State Workers Compensation

         10  Board has another definition. The drivers are

         11  independent in that they can come and go whenever

         12  they please. They are employees if you want to look

         13  at it from the standpoint of that when I get a call

         14  I give it to them and they have to take it. So there

         15  are regulations that we have if you want to come and

         16  lease a vehicle from me, but they still lease the

         17  vehicle and they can come and go as they please.

         18  Much like the taxicabs do.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So, when you

         20  give them a call, they have to respond?

         21                 MR. LEVINE: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: If not, they

         23  respond to the call they want to take?

         24                 MR. LEVINE: That's correct. As a

         25  matter of fact, they're not allowed to in my base
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          2  pick up street work.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So they

          4  respond to your call and the pick up that you want

          5  picked up?

          6                 MR. LEVINE: Theoretically that is

          7  their sole source of income, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay, now,

          9  the problem that I have, or what I'm trying to

         10  understand, when we talk about franchises, and

         11  putting the stands, you know, for bid, if the bases

         12  are independently owned -- excuse me, if the drivers

         13  are independent owners of their vehicles, I could

         14  see where there's a problem in terms of the bases in

         15  this case having the drivers go to a stand, when in

         16  your case, for example, they have to do it, because

         17  they don't own the cars, they don't own the

         18  vehicles, correct?

         19                 MR. LEVINE: Yes. But in theory, if

         20  the economics of the situation work, I'm not going

         21  to send them there unless it's economical for both

         22  of us.

         23                 If the driver is not making money,

         24  I'm not making money and vice versa. So, if I'm

         25  going to look at a stand, for instance, on Flatbush
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          2  Avenue, in the hub there, and I'm going to say,

          3  okay, I can get X amount of calls out of there per

          4  day if I'm the only one that's allowed to pick up at

          5  that stand. And I'm going to figure, okay, I can

          6  spend, half that money is going to be mine and half

          7  the money the driver, roughly, and I spend X amount

          8  of dollars from my chair to pay for the rights to

          9  that stand. I'm going to say if I can take a

         10  thousand calls a day, I can have a thousand dollars

         11  a day that I can spend on that stand, figuring it's

         12  a dollar a call, but whatever my economics, whatever

         13  it feels like it's worth to me.

         14                 Once I get that stand, then my

         15  drivers know that it's enforced. Our service is the

         16  only one that's allowed to pick up there, they know

         17  I send them to that stand, and they go to that

         18  stand, there's a good chance they're going to get a

         19  call out of that stand. As opposed if they sit in

         20  front of my base when there may not be anybody

         21  there, they may not get a call. They don't make

         22  money unless they get calls.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I understand

         24  that. But, you know, in many of our communities, the

         25  reality is that it's difficult to, you know, find a
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          2  cab, and even, you know, same experience that the

          3  yellow cabs have, or people in midtown have, when

          4  it's raining, it's difficult to find a cab, the same

          5  thing is a reality in Northern Manhattan, and I

          6  would say not just above 179th but 155th and Eighth

          7  Avenue, I can assure you it's hard to find a yellow

          8  cab, and it's harder when it's raining.

          9                 The issue is, people want

         10  transportation. They want transportation. And, you

         11  know, it is scary to, you know, especially yourself

         12  that is involved with the livery industry, to hear

         13  you say that there no mechanism for the bases to be

         14  responsible, to hold them liable when one of the

         15  drivers is caught in the street either uninsured or

         16  undocumented, in terms of the permit needed.

         17                 Because I know for a fact, hearing it

         18  from TLC, they have what they call, I think tripling

         19  the summonses, where if the driver is summoned for a

         20  violation, so is the base. And when you say that if

         21  you put these stands together, there is no clear

         22  mechanism for the bases to be held responsible or

         23  liable, and I think that already exists in terms of

         24  the tripling of summonses. When the driver gets a

         25  summons, the base also gets a summons, or that
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          2  driver that's in violation.

          3                 What I want to make sure is that we

          4  don't have a monopoly of these stands. That one base

          5  or a company that owned franchises now becomes owner

          6  or has the permit for these stands, and that's an

          7  issue that, Mr. Chair, we need to pay close

          8  attention to, people just want transportation. I

          9  want to come out of my house and if there's a stand,

         10  I want to find a cab. If I call I want a cab to come

         11  to my door. If I go to the street and hail a cab

         12  down, I want to find a cab. And that's the situation

         13  that we're not finding them.

         14                 MR. LEVINE: If I may, there's two

         15  issues there.

         16                 One is the franchise system. And I

         17  wholeheartedly agree with you. Again, as a member of

         18  Manhattan Community Board 5 for years, the community

         19  is the one that places these stands, and the

         20  community is the one that needs to be served by

         21  these stands. And if the TLC or the City or whoever

         22  is going to regulate this, they're going to say,

         23  okay, you can buy the rights to the stand, well, it

         24  should be on the same rights as any other City

         25  contract, where you can bid it for a year, and if
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          2  you're not giving good service, boom, you're out,

          3  and that's taken into consideration. And that's a no

          4  brainer there.

          5                 As far as the double summonsing, I

          6  know my drivers I've had before have gotten

          7  summonsing for illegal pick-ups. The based does not

          8  get summonsed for that. There are some things that

          9  the driver and the base get summoned, sometimes they

         10  do, sometimes they don't, and to be honest, I've

         11  been doing this for two years and I still haven't

         12  figured out the TLC's logic as to which things

         13  should be done and which things should not.

         14                 There are a lot of things in the

         15  livery regulations that have just never been gone

         16  over and perhaps they should, which are beyond the

         17  scope of this discussion.

         18                 But as far as, you know, we've

         19  mentioned the economic problem, no one has mentioned

         20  the geographic problems in the outer boroughs.

         21                 For instance, in Manhattan, I live on

         22  18th and Park, but no matter who I visited in

         23  Manhattan, I was never more than half a block from

         24  an avenue, at least in downtown Manhattan, and I

         25  know that I can walk half a block and I'll be able
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          2  to find a taxicab. And a taxicab, on the other hand,

          3  knows that if it goes down that avenue there will be

          4  people waiting for it. But if it goes to Queens or

          5  it goes to Brooklyn. In Queens you've got Northern

          6  Boulevard, you've got, you know, Main Street, you've

          7  got a bunch of places where the cabs know that if

          8  they go there will be places, but most people don't

          9  live on those streets, and if they want to come out

         10  of their house and hail a cab, they've got to hike

         11  in order to get to one of those streets. In

         12  Brooklyn, if you're not on McDonald Avenue, if

         13  you're not on Ocean Avenue, if you're not on Coney

         14  Island Avenue, you got to hike to get there from

         15  your house in order to pick up, and that's a

         16  geographic problem that is not going to be solved in

         17  any way by this, and that's one of the reasons why

         18  the system of calling cars works out in the outer

         19  boroughs, it's more like a suburban system out there

         20  because that's the way the geographics have worked

         21  out.

         22                 Staten Island is the biggest example

         23  of that. I mean, Staten Island doesn't have a whole

         24  lot of problems with illegal street hails, because

         25  guys doing illegal street hails aren't going to make
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          2  enough money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: No, I agree.

          4  First of all, I'm sure that the intent of the

          5  legislation is not to bring down the value of the

          6  yellow cab and the medallions. Since we, ourselves,

          7  this body is proposing the sale of additional

          8  medallions, we want people to buy them and for them

          9  to have a value, but at the same time there's a

         10  large industry that thousands and thousands of

         11  families depend on, which is the livery cabs, and we

         12  have millions of residents that are not being served

         13  in terms of that means of transportation, and what

         14  I'm concerned, is that I keep hearing in all of the

         15  testimony, for example, that for example, the issue

         16  of IDs, the issue of the TLC compliance number

         17  posters, issues that I know for a fact before you

         18  are in the street, not all, I mean you have those

         19  who have private plates that are picking up. I was

         20  at a breakfast not too long ago, and we shared the

         21  same experience coming out of the airport, how they

         22  wait for you and they identify you before you come

         23  out the door and they ask if you need a cab, in

         24  Spanish, my people. Private plates. They were not

         25  TLC plates.
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          2                 MR. LEVINE: And they're not insured

          3  above 20 either.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So I just

          5  want to keep it in perspective that you have TLC

          6  livery cabs that are not the majority doing a lot of

          7  what we alleged is happening.

          8                 There may be a few with TLC that are

          9  picking up in the street, but a lot of the issues

         10  that are happening, I agree in terms of enforcement

         11  with these drivers with private plates, not TLC

         12  plates, doing a lot of these things, because base

         13  drivers, they have to have a drug test, they need a

         14  diamond, they need a tax stamp, the sticker, they

         15  need to have picture ID, and believe me, when we

         16  talk about safety and what kind of cars, some of

         17  these drivers are driving 2002 Lincoln Continentals,

         18  which blows my mind, but they're doing that. So,

         19  just to keep that on perspective.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         22  member. And I've got one last question. I apologize,

         23  but we do need to move on with the remaining panels.

         24  One last quick question for Ron Sherman, which is,

         25  you emphasized that we should, if we enact a bill
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          2  similar to this, that we should couple it with

          3  strict enforcement against illegal livery pick-ups.

          4  Are you suggesting that there should be just more

          5  agents out there enforcing the current rules? Or is

          6  there anything else we could do to perhaps curtail

          7  the illegal pick-ups?

          8                 MR. SHERMAN: I think what this

          9  Council could do to address this problem is by

         10  strengthening the penalties, and actually making

         11  sure that the rules that are in effect today are

         12  being enforced.

         13                 What's happening today is that most

         14  of the summonses that are being written never --

         15  it's a cost of doing business, first of all, so they

         16  just pay a fine.

         17                 Second of all, they get returnable to

         18  the wrong court. Where the courts just dismiss these

         19  cases because they come back to criminal court, and

         20  criminal courts are looking at this as what is the

         21  big deal here. They just get a letter from their

         22  base saying that they were on a prearranged call,

         23  and they dismiss, they dismiss all the summonses.

         24                 So, I think if this Council could

         25  look into ways of strengthening the penalties, and
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          2  use it as a deterrent so people would act within the

          3  laws, I think it would a long way to help the

          4  situation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

          6  for your time, and I apologize for meaning to keep

          7  this hearing moving.

          8                 I'd like to ask the next panel to

          9  join us at the witness table.

         10                 Eugene Pero, Arthur Grover, and

         11  Joseph Scalice. And I'd like to ask the next panel

         12  after this to prepare to testify. That would be

         13  Peter O'Donnell, Tom Ryan, and Shane Moynagh.

         14                 MR. PERO: Good morning, Chairman Liu,

         15  and members of the Transportation Committee. I'd

         16  just like to introduce at my left Joe Salice, and

         17  Arthur Grover. They're both from the Staten Island

         18  Livery Association, and they're in conjunction with

         19  our organization.

         20                 My name is Eugene Pero, and I am the

         21  President of the Livery Owners Coalition of New

         22  York, and the owner of Safe Way Car Service for the

         23  past 28 years.

         24                 I'm also a member of the Taxi and

         25  Limousine Commission's livery advisory board.
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          2                 I'm here this morning to discuss

          3  Intro. 267 and to advise you that my membership

          4  consists mainly of fleet operators is completely and

          5  totally against Intro. 267 in its entirety, for the

          6  following reasons.

          7                 First and foremost, yet, once again,

          8  the City Council seeks to reward illegal operators

          9  by proposing a law exonerating those who conduct

         10  such illegal activities.

         11                 As with vans, many livery operators

         12  are known to perform illegal street hails throughout

         13  the various areas of the City. And instead of

         14  pursuing these operators and punishing them, the

         15  City Council would reward them at the expense of

         16  legal taxpaying industry.

         17                 For 30 plus years, legal livery bases

         18  have built telephone-based businesses, fleet

         19  operators have performed 95 percent of the social

         20  service, Medicaid and senior citizen transportation.

         21  Drivers have been protected by answering only to

         22  radio dispatch calls. Dispatchers have scrutinized

         23  telephone calls to determine their validity, thereby

         24  insulating drivers from the would-be attackers.

         25                 All the livery killings and robberies
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          2  receiving press attention were a result of street

          3  hails. I make this statement after conferring with

          4  then Police Commissioner Howard Safir, who

          5  unequivocally claimed that street hail livery

          6  service was and is lethal to drivers performing this

          7  type of illegal work.

          8                 In addition to the safety factor, if

          9  you permit livery drivers to sit at livery stands,

         10  many will feel that it's more lucrative to perform

         11  this unregulated type of work and a necessity to be

         12  sponsored and supervised by a base will become

         13  unnecessary.

         14                 You cannot change the rules of the

         15  game 30 years into it.

         16                 As a member of the Governor's Livery

         17  Workers Compensation Task Force, I know for a fact

         18  that many bases do not carry workers compensation

         19  for their drivers.

         20                 Therefore, most livery drivers

         21  working for affiliated bases are not covered by

         22  insurance. Any on-the-job injury will not be

         23  compensated for by insurance.

         24                 It is also a fact that the

         25  compensation rates for the livery drivers performing
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          2  street hails will increase, because the increased

          3  danger inherent in this type of work. As it is, our

          4  costs are so high that the premium costs more than

          5  the vehicle itself.

          6                 In summation, my organization and

          7  other legitimate operations throughout the City will

          8  fight to stop this unfair legislation.

          9                 It is the job of the yellow taxis to

         10  provide street hail service. Placed the taxies at

         11  these proposed neighborhood stands and let them do

         12  the street work. It's not for the livery industry to

         13  do. You cannot legitimized something that has been

         14  illegal for all these years. If the wheel isn't

         15  broken, don't fix it.

         16                 Basically that's all I have to say.

         17  If you have any questions, or if anybody else has

         18  something to say?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there any

         20  testimony from the partners at the table?

         21                 MR. PERO: Oh, yes.

         22                 MR. SCALICE: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 My name is Joe Scalice, and I'm the

         24  president of the Staten Island Livery Association.

         25  I'm also a member of the Livery Advisory Board, the
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          2  TLC Livery Advisory Board, and I'm a member of the

          3  Livery Owners Coalition, and I also own Village Car

          4  Service in Staten Island New York.

          5                 Before I read my written remarks, I

          6  would like to suggest to my bretheren in the yellow

          7  cab business that they seemed to have figured out

          8  the for hire stand franchising, of the franchising

          9  of for-hire stands so diligently, maybe they could

         10  use that diligence to figure out how to get yellow

         11  cabs to the many already existing stands that are

         12  for the yellow cabs in the City. Maybe they could

         13  put a little brain power into that.

         14                 My number one concern is public

         15  safety and private safety. That should be the more

         16  paramount issue here, not the availability of being

         17  able to hail a for-hire vehicle, which I personally

         18  believe is a non-issue.

         19                 Staten Island is the most rural of

         20  all the five boroughs, has the worst public

         21  transportation, and there hasn't been a yellow cab

         22  in Staten Island in many years, yet the problem of

         23  FHV pick-ups in the street, picking up of street

         24  hails, or the inability of a person to pick up a

         25  street hail by an FHV, how ever you look at the
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          2  problem to be, doesn't really exist in Staten

          3  Island, simply because the people have been educated

          4  to call for a car on the phone, in advance, if

          5  necessary. They don't have to wait, they don't have

          6  to stand there and wait. They call in advance, it's

          7  called the post call. You post the call for 10:00

          8  a.m., the car shows up 10:00 a.m.

          9                 What are they going to get? What's a

         10  customer going to get for going out of their way to

         11  make that phone call? Well, they're going to get a

         12  for-hire vehicle from a TLC regulated base, a driver

         13  with a TLC license, and a car that has the proper

         14  New York City, New York State credentials ensuring

         15  that customer's safety. Ensuring customer safety

         16  should be the paramount issue.

         17                 There's also another issue called

         18  direction and control. Or when a driver no longer

         19  answers to a base station and the base loses

         20  direction and control, at that point the driver is

         21  no longer deemed an employee. And the base does not

         22  have to cover him with workers compensation. Now he

         23  has no coverage at all, because the insurance

         24  company only covers the passengers, not the drivers.

         25  The driver is not covered. He must have workers
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          2  compensation, which I believe you guys know is

          3  already a big problem.

          4                 Education of the public is really the

          5  way to go. People can pick up a phone and can get a

          6  for hire vehicle in the City, anywhere in the City

          7  in ten or 15 minutes. If they don't want to wait,

          8  they can call ahead.

          9                 There's no need for this bill, Mr.

         10  Chairman. Ironically the bill legalizes all the

         11  illegal activity the TLC has tried to stop for the

         12  last 20 years. And I believe it also shows disregard

         13  for the businesses who have played by the rules all

         14  these years.

         15                 It's a bad bill, Mr. Chairman, and

         16  it's a bad idea. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Is there any

         18  testimony from you, sir? Or do you wish to echo the

         19  sentiments?

         20                 MR. GLOVER: I would like to add that

         21  right now there are approximately 40,000 livery

         22  vehicles in the City of New York. Out of the 40,000,

         23  maybe ten percent are company owned, and 90 percent

         24  are independently-owned vehicles.

         25                 The only vehicles that handle
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          2  prearrangement basically, because there are

          3  independently-owned companies that do the right

          4  thing, but basically the people who are handling the

          5  prearranged work are the companies that own their

          6  own vehicles, their fleets.

          7                 There are companies throughout the

          8  City where you may have 400 cars attached to them

          9  and you look at the base and you have two people

         10  there, a dispatcher and a phone person, and I know

         11  I'm dealing with approximately 20 cars, and I have

         12  to have a phone person, a computer person, a

         13  dispatcher and many times I have to jump in. So,

         14  these people are out there running the streets. The

         15  problem is enforcement. If you can't stop these

         16  people from picking up in the streets, there's no

         17  reason to put stands on, you're just making the

         18  problems worse.

         19                 I've been in this business now about

         20  23 years, owning Mid-Island Car Service in Staten

         21  Island. We don't have the problems that the rest of

         22  the City has. Our people are educated. They know to

         23  call a licensed regulated car service, and we pick

         24  them up.

         25                 A lot of people say, well, what about
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          2  at the ferry, or what about at the train station?

          3  People call us from the other side of the ferry and

          4  they say I'm catching the 4:00 boat, can you pick me

          5  up at the ferry terminal? We're there to get them.

          6  The people that don't call, obviously they pick-up

          7  straight plated vehicles or independently-owned cars

          8  that aren't licensed by the TLC.

          9                 But this is not a rampant running

         10  situation. Education and enforcement and what you're

         11  looking for right now will not be needed.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         14                 And let me just say again, the

         15  problem that we are trying to address in the City

         16  Council is the lack of availability of car services

         17  that are available for people who simply need them

         18  right off the street as soon as they get out of a

         19  major transit hub.

         20                 I would ask all of you, and perhaps

         21  Mr. Scalice can be the spokesperson for now, whether

         22  you have -- you say the system is not broken, are

         23  you suggesting that there is no lack of this kind of

         24  off-the-street hail car service that people clearly

         25  want in the boroughs?
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          2                 You may be familiar with what's

          3  happening in Staten Island, have you been to

          4  Brooklyn and Queens and the Bronx to ask them to ask

          5  the people coming out of the transit area there if

          6  they need this kind of service, and if they are

          7  getting the kind of service?

          8                 MR. SCALICE: Mr. Chairman, I would

          9  suggest that if the question was posed in a certain

         10  way, you would get a different answer. If I was

         11  asking the question I would say how would you feel

         12  if I said to you that if you make a phone call and

         13  wait ten minutes, or if you make a phone call and

         14  you can get a cab five minutes after you walk out of

         15  the train station, but for that phone call you're

         16  getting an assurance that the vehicle is properly

         17  maintained and has all the proper credentials, as

         18  opposed to going out and getting the street car that

         19  may not have insurance and if they had an accident

         20  they wouldn't be covered and they would be left in

         21  the lurch, I'm sure that they would say that they

         22  would rather make the phone call and get the proper

         23  car.

         24                 So, I would think that, depending on

         25  how the question is posed, I would suggest, Mr.
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          2  Chairman, that we in Staten Island have a for-hire

          3  stand, we've had it for quite some time, the Taxi

          4  Commission allowed us to have it seven years ago at

          5  the Staten Island Ferry. That, Mr. Chairman, you

          6  should take a good look at, because that should be

          7  the model of all for-hire vehicle stands. It is a

          8  debacle, there are straight-plated cars picking up

          9  there. Our own Chairman in Staten Island, Chairman

         10  Elias Erute (phonetic) has requested the Taxi

         11  Commission, go up there and beat them over the heads

         12  because he came home one night from Manhattan and he

         13  got off the ferry and there was 15 illegal

         14  straight-plated, or TLC-plated cars that were

         15  affiliated with a base but never really took any

         16  call from a base, pulling him and his wife in each

         17  direction.

         18                 So, it was a free-for-all at the

         19  Staten Island Ferry, and what you're going to do is

         20  you're going to take that situation, and you're

         21  going to proliferate that through the whole entire

         22  City. That's what's going to happen.

         23                 I would suggest that the Committee

         24  take a good look at what happened at the Staten

         25  Island facility, Ramp F it's called at the Staten
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          2  Island Ferry, and when you see the horrors that that

          3  had become with the most wellest of intentions, as

          4  I'm sure that this bill has, but in reality it did

          5  not do what it was intended to do.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. And I

          7  think that we certainly do plan on taking you up on

          8  the suggestion of asking you questions in different

          9  ways.

         10                 I think that my colleagues and I in

         11  the City Council do intend to study this issue

         12  vigorously, and to perhaps get some credible

         13  information, as opposed to -- well, let me not say

         14  credible, let me say statistical and more scientific

         15  information, as opposed to these anecdotal pieces of

         16  evidence that we often get from various groups and

         17  individuals out there.

         18                 So, we will look at this in a

         19  scientific way and I think your suggestion is good,

         20  that we ask the questions in various different

         21  approaches.

         22                 I still do think that from firsthand

         23  experience, and this is an anecdotal piece from

         24  myself, that we do have this problem. And

         25  incidentally, one of your colleagues just talked
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          2  about people who are getting on the ferry generally

          3  do make that prearranged call, whereas you are just

          4  saying that, you're just now saying that there's a

          5  system that works at the Staten Island Ferry with

          6  the for-hire vehicle stand, where I guess maybe they

          7  have vehicles real nearby so that it really is a

          8  prearrangement.

          9                 It seems a little contradictory to me

         10  --

         11                 MR. SCALICE: I could clarify that for

         12  you, Mr. Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure.

         14                 MR. SCALICE: Okay. The way that the

         15  ferry was used, the way the people were picked up at

         16  the ferry, the way the people were picked up at the

         17  ferry, long before there was a Ramp F, was to call

         18  us while they were on the ferry or while they were

         19  on the Manhattan side, so that has for the longest

         20  time. Twenty years ago when I got in the business,

         21  people would call me from Battery Park and they

         22  would say, hey, I'm on the ferry, I'm going to be in

         23  Staten Island in 20 minutes. They wanted to take

         24  Village Car Service because the know I run the

         25  business the right way, they know the drivers are
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          2  properly credentialed, and they know the drivers.

          3  So, all of these ambiguities are not in question.

          4                 Once Ramp F was created, which we

          5  believed would enhance service to those customers

          6  that were already getting service, that's when the

          7  debacle began.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Sure. And then I

          9  will also note that I have often many times taken

         10  the E or the F Train from Midtown out to Jamaica.

         11  That's a merely one-hour ride, it's underground so

         12  there's no way to even use your cell phone, and

         13  that's an example of how even if people were

         14  conscientious about making the prearranged call, the

         15  call to prearrange the car ride, that you're still

         16  looking at a lack of service for people who are

         17  getting out to those terminal hubs, where many

         18  thousands of people go to each day.

         19                 We have a question from Councilman

         20  Lanza.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair. More of a comment. I just want to extend my

         23  greetings to my friends from Staten Island.

         24                 I would add to Mr. Scalice's comments

         25  with respect to the stand at the Staten Island
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          2  Ferry. I think it is living proof that enforcement

          3  need be an essential ingredient moving forward with

          4  this proposal. I think that's come clear at this

          5  hearing. Mr. Chair, I credit you for this hearing. I

          6  didn't have the opportunity to say that before, but

          7  I think that's something that has come from this

          8  hearing and has been made known.

          9                 I would also add, as Scalice

         10  enumerated the woes, transportation woes for those

         11  who live in the outermost borough, among outer

         12  boroughs, Staten Island. One that I've experienced

         13  many, many times, and that is being, I guess the

         14  nicest way to put it is disinvited from yellow cabs

         15  trying to get back to Staten Island, once it became

         16  known that Staten Island was the destination. And

         17  that's something that, you know, I think every

         18  Staten Islander who has ever tried to get back to

         19  Manhattan by way of a yellow cab can testify to. So,

         20  thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         22  gentlemen.

         23                 MR. PERO: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'd like to ask the

         25  next panel to come up, Peter O'Donnell; Tom Ryan and
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          2  Shane Moynagh. And I'd like the next panel to

          3  prepare to testify. We have Mel Miller and Martin

          4  Berusch. Unless there are any objections.

          5                 Okay, also, I'd like to ask Council

          6  Member Diana Reyna, who has joined us, actually

          7  joined us awhile ago, I apologize for not

          8  recognizing you earlier, would you like to cast a

          9  vote on the three motions that were passed earlier

         10  today?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'd like to

         12  vote yes on all three motions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         14  I'd like to ask the clerk to make note of that.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 Good morning. Mr. O'Donnell.

         17                 MR. O'DONNELL: Is it on? Yes.

         18                 Mr. Chairman, and the Executive

         19  Board, I am pleased to be able to testify here this

         20  morning of a situation that we have in the Borough

         21  of Queens at 61st Street. And the testimony that I'm

         22  going to give is quality of life and health and

         23  safety. We have a very, very serious situation at

         24  that location, which is a livery cab, individually

         25  owned.
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          2                 My experiences with individually

          3  owned taxicabs is this: I have a son, 30 years of

          4  age, who by one of those gypsys came straight at him

          5  in a passenger car. It was found out later, the

          6  mechanism under which that car was operating was out

          7  of this world, it was beyond repair.

          8                 He, today, is walking around with a

          9  pin where his femur was broke in three places and

         10  has to live with that for the rest of his life, and

         11  he was compensated by the livery cabs that he was

         12  struck by with the sum of $2,500 for the rest of his

         13  life. That is one issue that I'm bringing before

         14  you.

         15                 I watch them. I'm a retired bus

         16  mechanic and welder. I see cabs on 61st Street, and

         17  let me give you some history, and the Taxi and

         18  Limousine that are speaking here this morning, how

         19  those livery cabs came about.

         20                 I happen to be an ex-employee on

         21  Green bus line. In 1979 you had a taxi stand on

         22  Sutphin and Hillside Avenue, a yellow cab. I don't

         23  blame the yellow cabs that they got disgusted when

         24  the Mayor of the City of New York, Edward I. Koch,

         25  told those people that had vans with beach chairs,
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          2  transporting people from all parts of Jamaica. You

          3  heard a Councilman speak, he can't catch a yellow

          4  cab in the Rockaways. No, because Mr. Koch told them

          5  that it was quite all right to -- you need nothing,

          6  go and pick up the people and take them back and

          7  forth.

          8                 The only reason with this

          9  transportation issue is, and how they were allowed

         10  to come in, and try and accommodate the City of New

         11  York is because at that time the City of New York

         12  was not accommodating the disabled in this City.

         13                 We did not have elevators to go up

         14  onto the Flushing Line and 61st Street. That was no

         15  good. That was no good to people in wheelchairs. We

         16  have them today, thank God. I'm a disabled person

         17  myself, and I'm happy to use those things.

         18                 You have a City Councilwoman here

         19  that can attest to 74th Street. It was abominable.

         20  Abominable. What we are putting up with today on

         21  61st Street, they are congesting traffic, our buses

         22  cannot go through and forward to Maspeth east or

         23  west, they're stopped by those gypsy cabs,

         24  congesting traffic. Our school children, our senior

         25  citizens, can't go to church because the crosswalks,
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          2  they can't even go to the drugstore because of those

          3  gypsy cabs. Please, I have come here this morning,

          4  those two gentleman know more than I. As you see, I

          5  am reading nothing. I'm speaking from here, okay?

          6  And I'm telling you to pass some kind of a law.

          7  There was a yellow designated taxi stand on 61st

          8  Street for years, when those gypsy cabs came in to

          9  61st Street, the yellow cab wanted no more, they

         10  don't even pick up in Woodside, okay?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         12                 MR. O'DONNELL: So, I will finish. I

         13  will conclude. See, I understand where you're coming

         14  from. I'm a member of Community Board 2, I'm a

         15  member of Community Council, and I'm a long time

         16  community activist, if you, Mr. Chairman, want me to

         17  give you any information, and I will invite you, and

         18  I think you should do it, is come to Community Board

         19  2 and address this. It's badly needed.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I'd be happy to.

         22  Thank you very much.

         23                 We have Tom Ryan.

         24                 MR. RYAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and

         25  Committee. We're basically here to represent
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          2  Woodside and 61st Street.

          3                 Specifically the transportation ought

          4  to be talked about. We have the Long Island

          5  Railroad, we have the 7 train, we have three buses,

          6  the Q18, the 32, the 53, more than enough

          7  transportation. What do we have? We basically have

          8  unregulated taxi, black car services, that's

          9  basically taken over the neighborhood, it's like

         10  extorsion. We have put together a petition to the

         11  public transportation to eliminate this because of

         12  the shear audacity of these TLC cabs. They have no

         13  respect for the community.

         14                 They will take up meter space all day

         15  long, sit there, they will litter, they will use the

         16  curbside as a public bathroom, they will double and

         17  triple park, you have pictures there that have been

         18  provided by Shane here, you'll see them there.

         19  They're basically blocking the entire length of

         20  traffic. They park in front of the hydrants, the bus

         21  stops, and this goes on every day. I was there

         22  yesterday to get a container of milk for my

         23  daughter. If I wasn't so consistent and my daughter

         24  didn't want the milk so much, I would have forgot

         25  about it, because it was ridiculous. And what does
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          2  that mean? It affects the merchant who pays taxes.

          3  It affects the City who doesn't get the income tax

          4  and the sales tax. It affects the people who are

          5  pedestrians, other people who have cars because they

          6  can't park there. They have a right to be there

          7  also.

          8                 Now, there has to be a lot more

          9  regulation than was talked about. There is nothing

         10  out there. These guys are basically black car

         11  cowboys. Excuse my language, that's basically what

         12  it comes down to.

         13                 The insurance, we've had guys that

         14  have been arrested for raping passengers in these

         15  TLC cars, we had questions of not having licenses,

         16  having criminal background checks that are

         17  questionable, how are these guys driving cars? It's

         18  a big problem.

         19                 Are there some good things? Yes. I

         20  think there's some great ideas today. Limited use of

         21  this, this might be a possibility.

         22                 Dispatchers, selling concessions,

         23  these might be good ideas, but it has to be very

         24  well controlled, has to be enforced, and has to be

         25  enforced well.
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          2                 We get these TLC agents out there all

          3  the time. They're diligent, they write tickets. What

          4  basically happens? You have a TLC guy with a glove

          5  compartment of tickets. The cost of doing business,

          6  it's ineffective at best.

          7                 If you want to provide for these TLC

          8  people, you want to provide for the community, you

          9  want to provide for everyone, there's got to be much

         10  better control. And there shouldn't be as many of

         11  these black cabs out there.

         12                 I'll give you a great question, a

         13  great situation. We have a florist, she has to

         14  compete with the illegal vendor selling flowers in

         15  front of her shop. We've got the Baskin and Robbins

         16  store who has a Mr. Coffee Truck who parks right in

         17  front of his store. I mean, the audacity of these

         18  people, it just is, there's no shame, there's no

         19  common courtesy. This is what we have to deal with,

         20  and as much as I appreciate this idea, the approach

         21  in this, you guys have a lot of work to do, because

         22  there's a huge, huge problem. And anywhere you go on

         23  the number 7 train, from Main Street to 74th Street

         24  to wherever, the same situation all over.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Shane

          3  Moynagh.

          4                 MR. MOYNAGH: Hello, I'm Shane Moynagh

          5  from Shane's Bakery, Woodside, on 64th Street. I

          6  represent the traders on our block.

          7                 The situation out there is we are

          8  losing business. What happens now, we have people

          9  that come, drive to our neighborhood, and see, I

         10  provided photographs there, they come to our street,

         11  they will circle around the block once or twice and

         12  then disappear.

         13                 I have six issues here, and we have

         14  had several verbal and physical conferences with

         15  these taxi drivers or gypsy drivers, you want to

         16  call them, with our delivery people, for they can't

         17  get in. They line the whole street down on 64th

         18  Street on my side of the block, they're occupied

         19  outside my store, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

         20  We have no right to the parking spots outside my

         21  shop. We've had physical and verbal at least once or

         22  twice a week, where it got too close to punching out

         23  people.

         24                 At rushhour they're like flies, they

         25  just come out of nowhere. They take over, again,
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          2  with the photographs I have provided. They take the

          3  whole street down by the meters, and then they

          4  double park, and then it gets into, as soon as one

          5  pulls out, the next pulls in, so nobody has a chance

          6  of getting in there.

          7                 They are constantly hissing at

          8  people, tooting their little horns, toot toot toot.

          9  The aggravate the customers, the people on the

         10  street. In the summertime and in the wintertime they

         11  run their cars 24 hours a day to keep the air

         12  conditioner on or the heating, and the fumes in

         13  these cars, I would like to know where they're

         14  getting their inspections because I have, as a baker

         15  have vehicles, and if I don't pass my inspection

         16  tickets, I'm not allowed to go on the road. I don't

         17  know who passed these cars.

         18                 As far as I'm concerned, these people

         19  are allowed to operate illegally by picking up

         20  passengers. The amount of interference from the City

         21  enforcement is a joke.

         22                 The Taxi and Limousine Commission

         23  send people down weekly but with no affect. I do not

         24  see them weekly, or when they do come the operation

         25  lasts roughly about an hour, two hours, and as soon
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          2  as they're gone the taxi guys are right back again.

          3                 The Police Department carry out the

          4  same procedure with the same results.

          5                 We, the store owners of 64th Street,

          6  have called meetings, inviting our local

          7  politicians, members of the community, the media,

          8  articles enclosed you have over there, and all to no

          9  avail.

         10                 We as a community and a trader of

         11  Woodside are completely disgusted with the

         12  situation, and would appreciate some help

         13  immediately, actually from somebody somewhere along

         14  the line, because as far as we're concerned it's

         15  just gone completely out of control, and nobody has

         16  acknowledged us, listened to us, as a block on that

         17  street we contribute quite a bit in sales taxes, and

         18  if I don't pay my sales taxes to this City, within

         19  24 hours I'm penalized.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         22  for your time.

         23                 Any questions from members of the

         24  Committee?

         25                 Council Member Sears.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you for

          3  being here. It's good to see all of you. I have

          4  spoken with you from time to time and have attended

          5  your community board.

          6                 I think what you have just said has

          7  probably reinforced some of the arguments that have

          8  come before about the fact that enforcement is very,

          9  very key in this issue, and I think I'd like to

         10  separate Gypsy cabs from those that are licensed.

         11                 Gypsy cabs are a big problem. To my

         12  knowledge they're not licensed, that's why they

         13  would be started out being called gypsy cabs.

         14                 MR. MOYNAGH: Right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The Taxi and

         16  Limousine Commission, through their limited

         17  enforcement, works very hard to get them off the

         18  street. The fact is that people are using them, and

         19  it went back to education earlier, that they should

         20  be able to identify what is a licensed vehicle and

         21  which is not.

         22                 But what's interesting is that you

         23  stated, Tom, that where you are, and that's a

         24  transportation hub, you've got all kinds of

         25  connections, because these bases would have to be
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          2  where there's transportation, where there's a

          3  transportation hub, and we need to look at the chaos

          4  that is caused in those areas because there is no

          5  enforcement, because they know there's going to be

          6  some pick-ups there.

          7                 So, you've raised some very important

          8  issues that we need to basically look at.

          9                 In terms of, and, really, I think

         10  that we'll have to speak to Community Board 2 about

         11  that because enforcement in your area is key.

         12                 I know that in 74th Street, where

         13  there was an abundance of these illegal vehicles,

         14  they're few and far between, they really are,

         15  because there has been a huge effort to educate and

         16  to identify what is licensed and what isn't. So,

         17  that's something that needs to be worked at, but you

         18  brought forth another interesting point because

         19  these ground sites would have to be where people are

         20  getting from public transportation. They're not

         21  going to be based in the middle of nowhere, because

         22  you wouldn't have anybody servicing them.

         23                 So, that in itself creates a

         24  situation if there is no enforcement.

         25                 So, that's something that has to be
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          2  considered as well.

          3                 MR. O'DONNELL: Madam Councilwoman, I

          4  would like to ask you the question in your Community

          5  Board 5 --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: 3. Well, 3, 5.

          7                 MR. O'DONNELL: 3. 5.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: 2.

          9                 MR. O'DONNELL: That on Woodhaven

         10  Boulevard and Queens Boulevard, how you got them out

         11  of that location. That was a disaster, it was so

         12  dangerous. And a thoroughfare such as Queens

         13  Boulevard and Woodhaven Boulevard, they were got out

         14  of there, now the situation is, I would say, at

         15  least 50 times worse down where we are.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You're right.

         17  You're right.

         18                 MR. O'DONNELL: So, if there's a

         19  situation, or a remedy as to how you eliminated. All

         20  we're here for, and you, as elected officials, are

         21  here for, is to try and correct a problem. And if it

         22  can be done in one place, such as a place like

         23  Woodhaven and Queens Boulevard, and the situation

         24  which is another hub of like Councilwoman Sears

         25  stated where there's three bus lines, a subway line
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          2  coming in there.

          3                 It's mind-boggling to me, a resident

          4  there for 43 years, to see what's happening. What

          5  has happened to my neighborhood, Woodside, since I

          6  arrived there, and you've heard of urinating in the

          7  streets, you had a stabbing, fatal stabbing at that

          8  are. You have some shouting and fighting if they try

          9  to take a fare away from another in the middle of

         10  the night when people are trying to sleep. This is

         11  what I'm trying to bring forth to you people, that's

         12  the only reason I came down here. I brought my son's

         13  issue down here, through one of them, okay?

         14                 So, I would deeply, deeply appreciate

         15  it if you can -- I'm not here to say, you know,

         16  these people are not entitled to go out there and

         17  make a day's pay. Let them make a day's pay, but at

         18  that location, it's not the location. Please do

         19  something.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, we'll

         21  look at it and we'll bring in the Taxi and Limousine

         22  Commission and look at some education and a

         23  concerted effort on the part of the agencies to

         24  bring in enforcement in that area. We'll do that.

         25                 MR. O'DONNELL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. We have a

          3  question from Council Member Martinez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 So, you strongly believe that by

          7  setting stands you will have a more orderly fashion

          8  where you will be -- the disturbance that you hear

          9  and the arguments that you hear won't go away, it

         10  will just make it worse?

         11                 MR. RYAN: It's going to be a question

         12  of control. It's a question of control. If you sell

         13  a stand, let's say we have six cars --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Patrol you

         15  said?

         16                 MR. RYAN: Control. That's the key

         17  wording, because if we can put all these great

         18  things in effect, but if there's not going to be the

         19  control, no one is going to be accountable, it's

         20  going to be business as usual. We're wasting our

         21  time.

         22                 Yes, we could use a limited taxi

         23  stand, six to ten cars, controlled by the City,

         24  regulated, someone who is responsible.

         25                 We have car services that follow the
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          2  rules, we have Three Twin, Caprice, they follow the

          3  rules and regulations. All these ones that you're

          4  regulating, these are these cowboys I'm talking

          5  about. No rules, no regulations. They don't have a

          6  base station. The gentleman brought up a good point,

          7  for $20 they get a letter from Joe Dispatcher, yes,

          8  he works for me and I'm on a dispatched call,

          9  they're not. That's the question. You've got to weed

         10  this out. You know, we don't need all these -- you

         11  know, the only way to identify TLC cars is two ways,

         12  black, four doors, with a TLC plate. That's the way

         13  they identify them now.

         14                 That's easy, I mean Hollywood props,

         15  everyone gets them, like this gentleman said before.

         16                 I mean, what kind of rules and

         17  regulations are that? Who are we letting driving

         18  these cars?

         19                 Now, if we do this, it's got to be

         20  heavily regulated. I mean, honestly, unless you're

         21  going to do it and make the full commitment, I don't

         22  think it's worth it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I'm sorry, I

         24  forgot to ask. Are you here with a group?

         25                 MR. RYAN: I work with an organization
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          2  called Woodside on the Move, it's a local

          3  development corporation. Just like every other

          4  community has one. This gentleman here is a

          5  community activist, he's a merchant. So, we're sort

          6  of representing the broad base of Woodside.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I also

          8  picked up that you kept referring to "these people;

          9  these people; these people," what do you mean by

         10  "these people?" Who are "these people?"

         11                 MR. RYAN: These TLC people, they're

         12  animals.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: TLC?

         14                 MR. RYAN: TLC people.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay.

         16                 MR. RYAN: Drivers.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes, drivers.

         18                 MR. RYAN: Maybe we're using the wrong

         19  -- but that's how we identify it, everyone knows

         20  TLC in outer boroughs, drivers, what have you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         22                 MR. O'DONNELL: I would like to answer

         23  his question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Briefly, if you

         25  could, sir.
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          2                 MR. O'DONNELL: Mr. Martinez, you are

          3  a City Councilman, how would you like to live in a

          4  residential area and try and sleep all night long

          5  and have somebody shouting, yelling, and

          6  fistfighting, throwing knives down in the street

          7  below your apartment and you have to go some place

          8  the next day?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Mr. O'Donnell, I

         10  apologize but we have to conclude this hearing soon.

         11                 MR. O'DONNELL: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Because there's

         13  another hearing that is going to commence soon. And

         14  I believe that Council Member Martinez is

         15  responsive, I could speak on his behalf, it would be

         16  very similar to any of our colleagues up here.

         17                 MR. O'DONNELL: Well, that's what's

         18  going on, Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         20                 MR. O'DONNELL: And I thank you very

         21  much for this hearing this morning. I attend many at

         22  Community Board 2.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 MR. RYAN: Mr. Chairman, if I may, one

         25  more thing we haven't addressed. You know what?
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          2  People still have two feet, they can walk. You know,

          3  most of the people that pick up these cabs, they

          4  just don't want to walk a couple of blocks, so let's

          5  keep that --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay, we may

          7  consider introducing a bill that will ban cars in

          8  the City of New York.

          9                 I'd like to ask the next panel to

         10  join us at the witness table.

         11                 We have Mel Miller and Martin

         12  Berusch. And immediately after them we will have our

         13  final panel consisting of Stephen Spencer and

         14  Richard Kay.

         15                 Mr. Speaker, it's an honor to have

         16  you in these Chambers.

         17                 SPEAKER MILLER: Thank you.

         18                 MR. MILLER: Mr. Chairman, and members

         19  of the Committee, I'm going to be very brief,

         20  because I think you've heard a lot of testimony that

         21  raises a lot of questions. Not that the idea is

         22  wrong or bad or doesn't have resonance, but it

         23  raises issues as to whether or not it's practicable,

         24  can we put it into place and enforce it, have we

         25  really assessed the needs? All the kinds of problems
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          2  that you face when you're doing anything that's new

          3  and different, because everybody is afraid of

          4  everything that's new and different.

          5                 And I thought I would make a couple

          6  of suggestions, as you know I do represent the

          7  Committee for Taxi Safety, consistent with I think

          8  the basic testimony of the medallion industry is

          9  before we jump into the pool, maybe we ought to test

         10  the water.

         11                 Maybe before we sit and philosophize

         12  about things we have no evidence, and I don't think

         13  we'll find the statistical evidence, because I don't

         14  think anybody keeps these statistics, is perhaps it

         15  would be a good idea to pit a couple of places in

         16  two or three of the outer boroughs or Northern

         17  Manhattan, try it. I knew you were going to, that's

         18  why I said Northern Manhattan, because I was looking

         19  at you. Williamsburg, and I don't know if I've

         20  covered all the members here, Helen has mixed

         21  emotions maybe we'll leave her alone, but I think

         22  maybe you ought to pick some places that we can get

         23  some agreement between the DOT and members of the

         24  Committee and the TLC, and just try for three months

         25  or six months, run an experimental program, without

                                                            137

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  going through all the red tape of bidding, if you're

          3  going to bid franchises, of course just to develop

          4  an RFP will take a year, and run it to see what are

          5  the real problems, can we really do it, is it really

          6  enforceable.

          7                 Because you don't want to jump in

          8  with 30 or 40 or 50, no matter how you can figure

          9  it, and find out what you've done is create

         10  something that's non-workable. My experience in

         11  government says that all legislators, and I was as

         12  guilty as any, once you had an idea that was enacted

         13  into law, even if it didn't work, you never wanted

         14  to repeal it, which is why you have these crazy

         15  systems.

         16                 So I would suggest we try and perhaps

         17  do it in cooperation with the Administration, run

         18  three or four stands, really get some real evidence,

         19  how big is the need really. Are we talking only

         20  about peak periods of the day? What kind of

         21  enforcement do we really need, can we afford the

         22  enforcement, and take it step by step. And I think

         23  then we can come back and say, look, we now have

         24  experience, this is what we've learned, and perhaps

         25  move on.
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          2                 The other comment I'd like to make,

          3  because it's something that I have heard in hearing

          4  after hearing. There are 40,000 authorized liveries

          5  in New York City. And the real question is, is there

          6  enough prearranged business to warrant issuing

          7  40,000 livery licenses, and I raise the question

          8  only because the illegal pick-ups may be a result

          9  that the economics of this City cannot sustain

         10  40,000 essentially independent or based attached

         11  livery vehicles because there's not enough

         12  prearrangement business to make money, just as we

         13  know a yellow taxicab operating in the outer

         14  boroughs where you don't have quick pick-up and

         15  drop-off cannot make a living, it would be very

         16  difficult.

         17                 Is there really enough business or

         18  should we start looking about restricting the number

         19  of livery licenses, obviously grandfathering in the

         20  people who are in the business now, so we don't

         21  displace workers, so that there is some measure of

         22  taking demand and supply, putting it into the

         23  balance, so those who are driving liveries can truly

         24  make a living by prearrangement and do not have to

         25  resort to the illegal pick-up.
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          2                 The next thing I would like, one

          3  other thing to mention. You know, we have

          4  Rockefeller drug laws in New York State, we've been

          5  educating people about use of drugs forever, we

          6  still have use of drugs, we still have people going

          7  to prison. Enforcement can only take you so far and

          8  education can only take you so far, because when

          9  there is a demand, the demand is going to be met.

         10                 I live on the Upper West Side, it is

         11  not an unsophisticated neighborhood. I can go out at

         12  8:00 in the morning to go to work, I take the subway

         13  most of the time, and the truth is, illegal pick-ups

         14  are so thick that I can count from 75th to 77th

         15  Street where I walk through the subway, maybe 20 or

         16  30 in any five or six-minute pick-up.

         17                 The only way we're going to be able

         18  to control the illegal pick-up, is to ensure that

         19  there is enough prearranged business so people can

         20  make a real living.

         21                 So, I think as part of this idea of

         22  perhaps creating stands where authorized legal,

         23  regulated, good bases with good operators, some of

         24  whom we've heard from today may run these stands

         25  professionally, we should also look about bringing
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          2  down the numbers and maybe bringing down the numbers

          3  in the longrun is the solution for the pick-up,

          4  because enforcement of crime or any other thing that

          5  government does will never be 100 percent

          6  successful.

          7                 And I leave you with those remarks,

          8  but I do congratulate the Committee for putting out

          9  something new, maybe it's a little different and

         10  maybe people's response because it's different is

         11  leave well enough alone. Well, well enough is not

         12  always enough. Maybe we should try to make sure if

         13  we're going to go and open a new barrier. We do it

         14  very carefully, very slowly, so we don't make a very

         15  grievous mistake that will hurt the present industry

         16  and not do anything for our consumers.

         17                 MR. BERUSCH: My name is Martin

         18  Berusch, and I'm here representing the New York

         19  State Federation of Taxi Drivers.

         20                 We represent over 18,000 drivers,

         21  livery drivers, that is, in the New York

         22  Metropolitan area. And first of all, I would like to

         23  applaud Council Member Liu's leadership in

         24  implementing this bill that is being debated here

         25  today.
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          2                 The fundamental issue that it seems

          3  that we're discussing here is demand. The demand to

          4  satisfy, not only the passengers who need to be

          5  picked up here in Manhattan, Uptown Manhattan, but

          6  all throughout the five boroughs.

          7                 We have the large majority of our

          8  taxi drivers go to the outer boroughs and pick up.

          9  We would like to see some bill implemented at a

         10  later date where not only taxi stands are going to

         11  be implemented, but as well as the allowance of

         12  hails to take place, where we can actually pick up

         13  hail passengers in areas where existing yellow cab

         14  medallion drivers don't pick up.

         15                 That would mean areas such as in the

         16  Bronx. Today we could say that in the Bronx the only

         17  place where taxi medallions pick-up is at 231st

         18  Street and Broadway. In Brooklyn we're looking at

         19  downtown, in Queens the Airport and the west side of

         20  Queens, of course Midtown Manhattan, as well as

         21  downtown.

         22                 There is no transportation that's

         23  available to passengers in the rest of the Bronx and

         24  the rest of Brooklyn, meaning East New York, Sunset

         25  Park, et cetera, and in Manhattan we're talking
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          2  about Washington Heights.

          3                 We basically are -- regarding the

          4  franchise, the idea of franchising, we would very

          5  much appreciate being a part of these discussions

          6  and we would like to see that maybe another hearing

          7  take place in the future, where the livery industry

          8  can be better represented. Today, unfortunately,

          9  only we are here representing that segment of the

         10  industry.

         11                 Commissioner Daus was talking about

         12  finding creative, what he proposed creative ways of

         13  addressing these concerns, and we would definitely

         14  like to be part of those discussions as well, to

         15  share suggestions that we have.

         16                 In the past we were talking about,

         17  we, the New York State Federation of Taxi Drivers,

         18  had created an analysis about two years ago where we

         19  discussed implementing green zones, so to speak,

         20  where the communities that are presently being

         21  underserved by the yellow medallion drivers, that

         22  they could actually have prompt service as well.

         23                 I also wanted to make a point of

         24  another individual here that was testifying today in

         25  referring to, in the venue of economics, how this
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          2  segment of the population is pick-pocketing,

          3  pick-pocketing the individuals, and I believe that

          4  this comment was both incendiary and irrelevant. I

          5  think that it's important that we all respect each

          6  other, that we understand, of course, that there are

          7  the so-called rotten apples in the industry, but

          8  that does not represent the majority of who we are.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         10                 MR. BERUSCH: Thank you very much. I

         11  do apologize --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: That's okay.

         13                 We have a question. Actually, I just

         14  have a quick question for you. You have on your

         15  sheet that you're representing the New York State

         16  Federation of Taxi Drivers.

         17                 MR. BERUSCH: That is correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: So that we, in all

         19  of your statements you're talking about taxi drivers

         20  in the sense of medallion taxicab drivers?

         21                 MR. BERUSCH: Let me make that

         22  clarification.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay.

         24                 MR. BERUSCH: It's actually the livery

         25  drivers that by and large are independently-owned
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          2  cars.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. But the name

          4  of your organization is the Federation of Taxi

          5  Drivers?

          6                 MR. BERUSCH: That is correct, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

          8                 A question from Council Member

          9  Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you. A

         11  quick question.

         12                 Mr. Miller, when you say 40,000, what

         13  does that translate in terms of drivers; do you have

         14  an idea?

         15                 MR. MILLER: Well, you know, I really

         16  don't know. All we can give you is statistics as to

         17  how many licenses the TLC actually issues and then

         18  you can take a look at the number of licenses, but

         19  there is no equation between the number of licenses

         20  and really the number of people who truly are

         21  driving. It's like you may go in and -- I think you

         22  used to, have a license to drive, but you don't

         23  drive anymore. We don't really have a real

         24  comprehensive listing whose actually going out there

         25  and driving liveries day in and day out. All we can
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          2  tell you is that the supply is 40,000 cars have been

          3  licensed to do livery service in New York City.

          4                 Now, if you start, which is four

          5  times the number of medallion cabs. So all together

          6  there are over 50,000 cars, now if you want to make

          7  a living and start doing the numbers, if you've

          8  driven a car or you're familiar with the industry,

          9  they're just not the passenger base. The passenger

         10  base does not exist.  On the prearrangement basis,

         11  you'd have to do a million to a million and a half

         12  prearrangements a day minimally to support that type

         13  of cars out there and it's not there, so what

         14  happens if you can't make a living, you go out and

         15  do a street hail even though it's illegal because

         16  you still have to feed your family at night.

         17                 So, the question is, just something

         18  I'm throwing at you, bring supply and demand into

         19  line. We may be able to move away from the

         20  illegality because I don't think in the end, and

         21  this is a personal opinion for watching government,

         22  as good as enforcement can be, and obviously it can

         23  be a lot better than it has been, enforcement, as

         24  you know, will only be X percent effective, and

         25  that's in housing, in taxis, in anything else that
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          2  government does.

          3                 So, sometimes by attrition because

          4  you don't want to throw anybody out of work, by

          5  bringing supply and demand into balance, we may have

          6  as much effect on what the outstanding problems are,

          7  as by trying to lock up everybody who we catch,

          8  which we will never do anyhow.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Does TLC

         10  make it available by community boards? I know that,

         11  Council Member Reyna and I were just going over

         12  this, that you usually ask for recommendation from

         13  the Council member, all the time they are approving

         14  or renewing a new base, do they have a listing, or

         15  they have it categorized by community board in terms

         16  of how many licensed base that you know?

         17                 MR. MILLER: David, do you know?

         18                 I see a nodd from the expert. Do you?

         19  The answer is yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Mr. Chair,

         21  that would be an interesting document for us to

         22  have, in terms of by community board, how many

         23  licensed bases are there. In terms of addressing,

         24  and looking at the issue of supply and demand. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I think that

          3  information is already available in-house in the

          4  City Council, but if it's not then we will certainly

          5  look to get it.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I don't have

          8  one.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: We'll try to get you

         10  one, Miguel.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much

         13  for your time today and your patience.

         14                 MR. MILLER: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And I'd like to

         16  welcome our final panel, Stephen Spencer, Richard

         17  Kay. Oh, okay, I apologize, Council Member Sears

         18  does have a question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, I had a

         20  question for Mr. Miller. Just one question, and it's

         21  really for clarification so that we can do a lot of

         22  work on this proposed bill.

         23                 To provide a demand, you know, to

         24  provide for demand service, it seems to me that a

         25  great deal is on impulse use of these vehicles, just
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          2  the way there's impulse shopping, there's impulse

          3  use of the vehicles.

          4                 That places, I would think, a big

          5  cloud over how we actually deal with this, because

          6  there's weather inclements that determine whether

          7  someone is going to use the vehicle or not, so if we

          8  look at the factors that come into play in

          9  addressing and how we address preplanned use of the

         10  industry, and the impulse use of the industry, do

         11  you have any suggestions of how we could look at

         12  that?

         13                 MR. MILLER: Well, the question you're

         14  asking, Councilwoman, is can a legislature have the

         15  wisdom of the Gods in determining what human

         16  emotions play.

         17                 Look, we have a medallion industry,

         18  when it rains you know it's much more difficult to

         19  hail a medallion cab, then when the sun is shining

         20  you would prefer to walk the ten blocks. I guess

         21  it's hard to legislate the peak and non-peak uses.

         22  It's like the subways, if you go at this hour you're

         23  going to get a seat. You know if you go at 5:00

         24  you're lucky if you can get into the subway car.

         25                 And I don't think you can -- I don't
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          2  think legislation itself can engineer so carefully

          3  the use of demand. What you do know is that if a

          4  person goes shopping on a busy street in one of the

          5  outer boroughs, I know Brooklyn better than Queens,

          6  so say Kings Highway in Brooklyn, and they're loaded

          7  with packages and they would die to jump into a taxi

          8  because they don't want to walk four blocks East

          9  16th Street to get the subway, or catch the Kings

         10  Highway bus, assuming it's still running.

         11                 The answer is they would love to have

         12  a taxi immediately available. Obviously government

         13  can't always provide immediate gratification. I

         14  think the function of the bill, having listened to

         15  the Chair and members, is that there are known

         16  places in the outer boroughs where demand need may

         17  be prevalent as against pre, picking up the phone,

         18  because I don't know when I'm going to finish

         19  shopping, I don't know when I'm going to be leaving,

         20  I don't know what time the subway is going to

         21  arrive. Maybe a little late. I'd love to have

         22  something available because there is no other means

         23  of transportation. So, I guess the intent of the

         24  bill is to provide something, not hails, but provide

         25  a place a person can go and say I know there is
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          2  going to be, or probably be a car sitting and

          3  waiting for me and the question is, can you

          4  implement it and do it in such a way we avoid the

          5  Staten Island Ferry problem, which apparently

          6  exists, or avoid the same problem we have now, is

          7  those who are unlicensed or who are unauthorized

          8  will be like bees to the honey, they'll all be

          9  around the stands and all we'll have is chaos.

         10                 So, the question is, and that's why I

         11  come back, you've got to do some experimenting to

         12  find out, whether with all good intentions the thing

         13  works, because I think it's a great idea. I'm not so

         14  sure, I don't know if it's going to work or not.

         15  Secondly the other problem is up, where you're going

         16  to take the curb space, how many parking spaces, all

         17  the things we discussed when I went out to talk to

         18  you about this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's right.

         20                 MR. MILLER: In a busy area, taking

         21  away curb spaces. You may have a newspaper stand

         22  there. So, I understand that. That's why it's really

         23  worthwhile trying, and then I think you can't come

         24  back and redesign until you try. And it's like

         25  trying a new car. You never buy a car the first
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          2  model year, because they don't get the kinks out til

          3  the second year.

          4                 So, I guess if we're going to try

          5  this as something new, let's try it, take out the

          6  kinks before you do it on a more general basis.

          7  That's the only thing. But manipulating supply and

          8  demand, boy, that's real difficult.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But you've

         10  provided a lot of information with that question, so

         11  I thank you. Really.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         13                 And once again, I'd like to welcome

         14  our final panel, and thank you for the patience, I

         15  know it's been a long hearing. Thank you for joining

         16  us.

         17                 Mr. Spencer.

         18                 MR. SPENCER: Okay, my name is Stephen

         19  Spencer, and I represent the Limousine Association

         20  of New York. I'm the owner of London Town Cars. We

         21  went into business in 1959, and we're still in

         22  business.

         23                 We operate under slightly different

         24  rules, and other services under the Taxi and

         25  Limousine Commission, in that we operate on the
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          2  basis of garage to garage service. Our insurance

          3  requirement is higher than other segments of the

          4  industry, and all of our cars, in most cases, there

          5  are some exceptions, are owned by the company, and

          6  the drivers are salaried employees.

          7                 Now, if one of our drivers is ever

          8  caught accepting a street hail, it's immediate

          9  termination. And we think it happens very rarely.

         10  And all I'm saying is that we are a little

         11  different. It was the limousine services that first

         12  inaugurated radios in the cars, the radio

         13  dispatching, all our cars are housed in our garages,

         14  and they're kept in those garages when they're not

         15  on the street. And all of them are under direct

         16  control of our dispatchers.

         17                 I do want to say that I'm very

         18  impressed by both the questions and the responses

         19  that I've heard today, which indicate to me that

         20  there's a very good chance that something good will

         21  come out of this discussion, and although I don't

         22  think it will affect our business as much as it will

         23  affect others, I think it's a very good thing.

         24                 And that's all I have to say.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Mr. Kay.
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          2                 MR. KAY: I am Richard Kay, President

          3  of the League of Mutual Taxi Owners, an organization

          4  that has, since 1934 represented individuals who own

          5  and drive their own taxicab or black car.

          6                 We have our own federal credit union

          7  to serve the personal and business financial needs

          8  of our members. Our membership is over 3,000 strong.

          9                 LOMTO is opposed to Intro. 267, as it

         10  is written, for many reasons.

         11                 This bill attempts to undo many of

         12  the positive things that the Taxi and Limousine

         13  Commission has done during the past 31 years. The

         14  Taxi and Limousine Commission should be in charge of

         15  all for-hire vehicles as it is now. Before jumping

         16  head first into unknown waters, a pilot program

         17  should be implemented with a fixed time period.

         18                 The bill does not address what type

         19  of license the driver of such a vehicle should

         20  possess, while servicing the public.

         21                 Any driver who works without

         22  prearrangement, should be required to meet the same

         23  qualifications as a medallion taxi driver.

         24                 The bill does not address the type of

         25  vehicle to be used. All New Yorkers are entitled to
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          2  the same quality vehicle, no matter what borough

          3  they are in. The cars should be equipped with

          4  adequate rear seat leg room, rear air conditioning

          5  and should be inspected four times a year.

          6                 The bill does not address the rate of

          7  fare to be charged by the driver.

          8                 What holds any system together, or

          9  makes the yellow cab system the service model we all

         10  seek, is the imposition of demanding standards and

         11  unrelenting enforcement of those standards by the

         12  Taxi and Limousine Commission and the Police

         13  Department.

         14                 We need to bring that kind of service

         15  to all New Yorkers.

         16                 The bill before you today does not do

         17  that. We must give full authority to the TLC. We

         18  must mandate vigorous enforcement. We must call for

         19  high standards of service.

         20                 The proposal, if implemented as

         21  written, will be generated into chaos and abuse with

         22  demands from the victimized public and responsible

         23  operators for new layers of regulation and

         24  enforcement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for your
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          2  testimony. Are there any questions for members of

          3  this Committee?

          4                 Once again, I thank you for your

          5  testimony, and your patience today.

          6                 Are there any other people who would

          7  like to provide comments in this public hearing

          8  format?

          9                 If there are none, then this meeting

         10  of the Transportation Committee is adjourned. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)
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